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Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

Sub: Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited – Annual Report for the FY 2024-25 along 

with the Notice of the 32nd Annual General Meeting 

 

We hereby inform you that the Thirty-second (32nd) Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of the 

members of the Company will be held on Wednesday, September 03, 2025 at 11:00 A.M. (IST) 

through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio-Visual Means ("OAVM"), in accordance with 

the relevant circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (SEBI). 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, we are enclosing herewith the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 

including the Notice of the AGM to be held on September 3, 2025. 

 

We also wish to inform you that the Notice of 32nd AGM and the Annual Report have been sent 

to the members today, i.e., August 11, 2025. 

 

Kindly take the above information on your record. 
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Yours sincerely, 

For Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited 
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Disclaimer: 

 
In this Annual report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our 
prospects and take informed investment decisions. This report and other statements – written and oral – that we 
periodically make contain forward- looking statements that set out anticipated results based on the management’s 
plans and assumptions. We have tried wherever possible to identify such statements by using words such as 
‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar substance in 
connection with any discussion of future performance. We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements 
will be realised, although we believe we have been prudent in assumptions. The achievement of results is subject to 
risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should know or unknown risks or uncertainties materialise, or 
should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those anticipated, 
estimated or projected. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether 
because of new information, future events or otherwise. 
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty-second (32nd) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of 
Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Wednesday, September 3, 2025, at 
11:00 a.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing/Other Audio-visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) facility, to transact the 
following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS:  
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2025, and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025, and the Report of Statutory Auditors thereon. 

 
3. To appoint a director in place of Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy (DIN: 0108599), who retires by rotation in 

terms of section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

 
                                                                                                                                        By the Order of the Board 

For Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited 
 
Date: May 3, 2025                  Sd/- 
Place: Hyderabad                                                                                                      Sunil Chandra Kondapally 

                                                                                                               Managing Director 
DIN: 01409332 
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Notes:  
 

1. Explanatory Statement(s) setting out the material facts pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act 
2013 (“Act”) in respect of special business (if any) set forth in the AGM Notice is annexed hereto and 
forms part of this Notice. The Explanatory Statement also contains the relevant details of the Directors as 
required by Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard – 2 
(“SS-2”) on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) Further, the 
term Member(s) or Shareholder(s) are used interchangeably in this Notice. 
 

2. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) vide its General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 read 
with the subsequent circulars issued from time to time, the latest one being General Circular No. 09/2024 
dated September 19, 2024 (collectively referred as “MCA Circulars”), has allowed the Companies to 
conduct the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual 
Means (OAVM) till September 30, 2025. In line with the MCA Circular(s), the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 
03, 2024, in relation to “Relaxation from compliance with certain provisions of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations” (“SEBI Circular(s)”) has relaxed the applicability of regulation 36(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing 
Regulations, for Annual General Meetings (AGMs) and regulation 44(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations 
for general meetings (in electronic mode) till September 30, 2025. In compliance with the Act, MCA 
Circular(s) and SEBI Circular, the AGM of the members of the Company is being held through VC/ 
OAVM and the deemed venue for the AGM shall be the registered office of the Company. 
 

3. Since this AGM is being held through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed 
with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxy by Members under Section 105 of the Act will not 
be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map are not annexed to 
this Notice. However, pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, Corporate Shareholders are entitled to appoint 
their authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM on their behalf and to vote through 
electronic means. 
 

4. The facility of VC/OAVM, casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue e-
voting on the date of the AGM is being provided by e-voting service provider, KFin Technologies Limited 
(“KFin”). 
 

5. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of the 
meeting and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 
available for 1000 members on a first-come first-served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 
without restriction on account on first come first served basis. 
 

6. In the case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per 
the Register of Members of the Company, maintain by depository will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 
 

7. The attendance of the Members (members’ logins) attending the e-AGM will be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
8. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders are required to send a scanned copy of their Board or governing body 

Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM on its 
behalf and to vote through e-Voting/remote e-Voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to 
Scrutinizer by email at balaramdesina@gmail.com with a copy marked to cs@medinovaindia.com  
 

9. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice shall be available for inspection electronically. 
Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to cs@medinovaindia.com  
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10. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, and the Register of 
Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained under the Companies Act, 
2013, will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. Members seeking to 
inspect such documents can send an email to cs@medinovaindia.com   

 
11. Members holding shares in demat mode, who have not registered their email addresses are requested to 

register their email addresses with their respective depository participants, and members holding shares in 
physical mode are requested to update their email addresses with the Company’s RTA, XL Softech 
Systems Limited at xlfield@gmail.com  
 

12. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 
Report 2024-25 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail address is 
registered with the Company/ Depository Participants. Members may note that the Notice and Annual 
Report 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website viz. 
http://www.medinovaindia.com/investors.php, and may also be accessed from the relevant section of the 
website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also available 
on the website of KFin at https://evoting.kfintech.com. 
 

13. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for making nomination is 
available for the members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their 
nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. Members are requested to 
submit the said details to their Depository Participants in case the shares are held by them in electronic 
form and to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) in case the shares are held by them in 
physical form, quoting folio number. SEBI has made it mandatory for the shareholders holding securities in 
physical form to furnish PAN, KYC details and Nomination to the Registrar and Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) 
of the Company. In view of the above, shareholders of the Company holding securities in physical form 
shall provide PAN, Nomination form, contact details including Postal address with PIN code, Mobile 
Number, E-mail address documents/details, bank details and specimen signature to RTA, in the prescribed 
forms ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13 and SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms are available on the 
website of the Company. 

 
14. SEBI has mandated that all the requests for transfer of securities including transmission and transposition 

requests shall be processed in the dematerialized form. Accordingly, shareholders holding equity shares in 
physical form are urged to have their shares dematerialized so as to be able to freely transfer them and 
participate in corporate actions. Members may contact Company’s RTA for assistance in this regard. 
 

15. SEBI has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the 
securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN 
to their depository participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are required to submit  their 
PAN details to the RTA. 
 

16. In accordance with the applicable MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Notice convening the 32nd Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) along with the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024–25 is being sent only through 
electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company, Registrar and 
Transfer Agent (RTA), Depositories or Depository Participants. For Members who have not registered 
their e-mail addresses, a letter will be dispatched by the Company providing a web-link, including the 
exact path where the Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report can be accessed. Members who wish to 
receive a physical copy of the Notice of the AGM and the Annual Report may request the same by writing 
to the Company at cs@medinovaindia.com, by mentioning their Folio Number/DP ID and Client ID. The 
Notice of the 32nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) along with the Annual Report for the financial year 
2024–25 is also available on the website of the Company at http://www.medinovaindia.com/investors.php, 
and on the websites of the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed i.e., BSE 
Limited at www.bseindia.com. Additionally, the Notice and Annual Report are available on the website of 
KFin at https://evoting.kfintech.com. 
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PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING: 
 

1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended from time to time) and Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations (as amended from time to time), the Company is providing facility to its members holding 
shares as on Cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, August 27, 2025 to exercise their right to vote by way of 
electronic means on all the resolutions as set forth in the accompanying AGM Notice through e-Voting 
service provider KFin Technologies Limited (“KFin”). 

 
2. The remote e-Voting period commences on Sunday, August 31, 2025, from 9:00 a.m. and ends on 

Tuesday, September 02, 2025, at 5:00 p.m. The e-voting module shall be disabled by KFin for voting 
thereafter. Once the shareholder casts the vote on a resolution, the shareholder shall not be allowed to 
change it subsequently. 

 
3. Members may cast their vote during the above-referred remote e-voting period. Further, the facility to e-

vote at the AGM will be provided to the Members who have not cast their vote during remote e-voting 
period. 

 
4. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting prior 

to the AGM but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM. 
 

5. Any person holding shares in physical form and Non Individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the 
Company and becomes a Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of 
cut-off date, may obtain the login id and password by sending a request to evoting@kfintech.com. 
However, if he/she is already registered for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID 
and password for casting the vote. 
 

6. In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and who acquires shares of the 
Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the 
cut-off date may follow steps mentioned below under “Login method for remote e-Voting and joining 
virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.” 

 
7. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. D. Balaram Krishna, Practising Company Secretary (FCS: 8168, 

CP No. 22414) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and voting during the AGM in a 
fair and transparent manner. 
 

8. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes cast during 
the AGM and votes cast through remote e-voting), not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM, 
submit a consolidated scrutinizer report of the total votes cast in favour and against the resolution(s) 
has/have been carried or not, to the chairman or any other person authorised by him in writing. 

 
9. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website 

www.medinovaindia.com  and on the website of KFin https://evoting.kfintech.com immediately after the 
result is declared. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited where the 
securities of the Company are listed. 

 
10. Subject to the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the 

date of the Meeting i.e., September 03, 2025. 
 
PROCESS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING E-AGM: 
 
The detailed process and manner for remote e-Voting and e-AGM are explained below: 
 
STEP 1: Access to Depositories (NSDL / CDSL) e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares 
in demat mode. 
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STEP 2: Access to KFintech e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical and non-individual 
shareholders in demat mode. 
 
STEP 3: Access to join virtual meetings (e-AGM) of the Company on KFin system to participate in e-AGM and 
vote at the AGM. 
 
STEP 1: Login method for remote e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 
 

Type of shareholders Login Method 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 

1. User already registered for IDeAS facility may follow 
the following procedure: 
 
i. Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com 

ii. Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
under ‘IDeAS’ section. 

iii. On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post 
successful authentication, click on “Access to e-
Voting. 

iv. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting the vote during the remote 
e-Voting period. 

v. Click on “Active E-voting Cycles” option under E-
voting. 

vi. You will see Company Name: “Medinova Diagnostic 
Services Limited” on the next screen. Click on the e-
Voting link available against Medinova Diagnostic 
Services Ltd. or select e-Voting service provider 
“KFin” and you will be redirected to the e-Voting page 
of KFintech to cast your vote without any further 
authentication. 
 

2. User not registered for IDeAS e-Services may follow the 
following procedure: 
 
i. To register click on link: https://eservices.nsdl.com 

ii. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.j
sp 

iii. Proceed to complete registration using your DP ID, 
Client ID, Mobile Number etc. 

iv. After successful registration, please follow steps given 
           under point 1 above, to cast your vote. 
 
3. Alternatively, the users may directly access the e-Voting 

website of NSDL: 
 

i. Open URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com   
ii. Click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

            ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
iii. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 

User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 
held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen 

iv. Post successful authentication, you will be requested to 
select the name of the Company and the e-Voting 
Service Provider name, i.e. KFin 
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v. On successful selection, you will be redirected to            
KFintech e-Voting page for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period. 
 

4. NSDL Speede app: 
 
Shareholders/Members may also download NSDL Speede 
App on Mobile which is available on Google Play Store 
and Apple App Store. 
 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi /Easiest may 
follow the following procedure: 

 
i. Visit URL:https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/ login 

or URL: www.cdslindia.com 
ii. Click on New System Myeasi 

iii. Login with your registered user id and password 
iv. The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will 

have links of e-voting service provider i.e. KFintech e-
Voting portal. 

v. You will see Company Name: “Medinova Diagnostic 
Services Limited” on the next screen. Click on the e-
Voting link available against Medinova Diagnostic 
Services Ltd. or select e-Voting service provider 
“KFintech” and you will be re-directed to the e-Voting 
page of KFintech to cast your vote without any further 
authentication. Click on e-Voting service provider name to 
cast your vote. 

 
2. User not registered for Easi/Easiest may follow the 

following procedure: 
 

i. Option to register is available at https://web.cdslindia. 
      com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

ii. Proceed to complete registration using your DP 
IDClient ID (BO ID), etc. 

iii. After successful registration, please follow steps given  
under point 1 above to cast your vote 
 

3. Alternatively, by directly accessing the e-Voting website 
of CDSL 
 
i.   Visit URL: www.cdslindia.com 

ii.  Provide your Demat Account Number and PAN No 
iii. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on 

registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 
Account 

iv. After successful authentication, you will enter the e-
voting module of CDSL. Click on the e-Voting link 
available against Medinova Diagnostic Services Ltd. or 
select e-Voting service provider “KFintech” and you 
will be redirected to the e-Voting page of KFintech to 
cast your vote without any further authentication. 
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Individual Shareholders (holding shares in 
demat mode) login through their demat 
accounts/ Website of Depository Participant. 

i. You can also login using the login credentials of your 
demat account through your DP registered with NSDL 
/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

ii. Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. 

iii. Click on options available against Medinova Diagnostic 
Services Ltd. or e-Voting service provider – KFintech 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting page of KFintech 
to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
without any further authentication. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/Password are advised to use Forgot user ID and 
Forgot Password option available at respective websites. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL: 
 
Login Type Helpdesk details 
Securities held with NSDL Please contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 
and 1800 22 44 30 

Securities held with CDSL Please contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022 - 
23058738 or 022 -23058542-43 

 
STEP 2: Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode: 
 
A) Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participants (s), will receive an 

email from KFintech which will include details of E-Voting Event Number (EVEN), USER ID and 
password. They will have to follow the following process: 
 
i. Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://evoting.kfintech.com  

ii. Enter the login credentials (i.e. User ID and password). In case of physical folio, User ID will be EVEN 
(E-Voting Event Number), followed by folio number. In case of Demat account, User ID will be your 
DP ID and Client ID. However, if you are already registered with KFintech for e-voting, you can use 
your existing User ID and password for casting the vote. If required, please visit 
https://evoting.kfintech.com or contact toll-free numbers 1800309 4001 (from 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. on 
all working days) for assistance on your existing password. 

iii. After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN” 
iv. You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to mandatorily change your 

password. The new password shall comprise of minimum 8 characters with at least one upper case (A- 
Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character (@,#,$, etc.,). The system will 
prompt you to change your password and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID etc. 
on first login. You may also enter a secret question and answer of your choice to retrieve your password 
in case you forget it. It is strongly recommended that you do not share your password with any other 
person and that you take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

v. You need to login again with the new credentials 
vi. On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the “EVEN” i.e. ‘Medinova Diagnostic 

Services Ltd. – AGM” and click on “Submit” 
vii. On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on the Cut-off 

Date under “FOR/AGAINST” or alternatively, you may partially enter any number in “FOR” and 
partially “AGAINST” but the total number in “FOR/AGAINST” taken together shall not exceed your 
total shareholding as mentioned herein above. You may also choose the option ABSTAIN. If the 



 

 

9 
 

Member does not indicate either “FOR” or “AGAINST” it will be treated as “ABSTAIN” and the 
shares held will not be counted under either head. 

viii. Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process separately for each 
folio/ demat account. 

ix. Voting has to be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do not desire to cast your vote 
on any specific item, it will be treated as abstained. 

x. You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “SUBMIT”. 
xi. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to confirm or else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you 

have voted on the resolution (s), you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period, 
Members can login any number of times till they have voted on the Resolution(s). 

xii. Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are also required to send 
scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/Authority Letter etc., authorizing its 
representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to cast its vote through remote 
e-voting, together with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s), to the 
Scrutinizer at email id balaramdesina@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@kfintech.com. The 
scanned image of the above-mentioned documents should be in the naming format “Corporate Name_ 
EVEN No.” 

 
B) Members whose email IDs are not registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s), and consequently 

the Annual Report, Notice of AGM and e-voting instructions cannot be serviced, will have to follow the 
following process: 
 
i. Member may send an e-mail request at the email id einward.ris@kfintech.com along with scanned copy 

of the signed request letter providing the email address, mobile number, self-attested PAN copy and 
Client Master copy in case of electronic folio and copy of share certificate in case of physical folio for 
sending the Annual report, Notice of AGM and the e-voting instructions. 
 

ii. After receiving the e-voting instructions, please follow all steps above to cast your vote by electronic 
means. 

 
STEP 3: Instructions for all the shareholders, including Individual, other than Individual and Physical, for 
attending the AGM of the Company through VC / OAVM and e-Voting during the meeting. 
 

i. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM platform provided by 
KFintech. Members may access the same at https://emeetings.kfintech.com by using the e-voting login 
credentials provided in the email received from the Company/ KFintech. After logging in, click on the 
Video Conference tab and select the EVEN of the Company or the company name and click on the video 
symbol and accept the meeting etiquettes to join the meeting. Please note that the members who do not 
have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the 
same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned above. 

 
ii. Facility for joining AGM though VC / OAVM shall open at least 15 minutes before the commencement 

of the Meeting. 
 

iii. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops/ Desktops with Google Chrome (preferred 
browser), Safari, Internet Explorer, Microsoft Edge, Mozilla Firefox 22. 

 
iv. Members will be required to grant access to the webcam to enable VC / OAVM. Further, Members 

connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop, connecting via Mobile Hotspot may 
experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended 
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
v. As the AGM is being conducted through VC / OAVM, for the smooth conduct of proceedings of the 

AGM, Members are encouraged to express their views/send their queries in advance mentioning their 
name, demat account number/ folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@medinovaindia.com 
Questions /queries received by the Company till September 01, 2025 shall only be considered and 
responded during the AGM. 
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Instructions for e-voting during AGM: 
 
i. The e-Voting “Thumb sign” on the left hand corner of the video screen shall be activated upon 

instructions of the chairman during the AGM proceedings. Shareholders shall click on the same to take 
them to the “instapoll” page. 
 

ii. Members need to click on the “instapoll” icon to reach the resolution page and follow the instructions to 
vote on the resolutions. 
 

iii. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM and have not cast their vote through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system 
available during the AGM. 

 
OTHER INSTRUCTIONS: 
 

i. Speaker Registration: The Members who wish to speak during the AGM may register themselves as 
speakers for the AGM to express their views. They can visit https://emeetings.kfintech.com and login 
through the user id and password provided in the mail received from KFintech. On successful login, select 
‘Speaker Registration’ for registration which will be opened from Sunday, August 31, 2025, 9:00 a.m. IST 
to Monday, September 01, 2025, 5:00 p.m. IST. Members shall be provided with a queue number’ before 
the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as 
appropriate for the smooth conduct of the AGM. 
 

ii. Post your Question: The Members who wish to post their questions prior to the meeting can do the same 
by visiting https://emeetings.kfintech.com. Please login through the user id and password provided in the 
email received from KFintech. On successful login, select ‘Post Your Question’ option which will be open 
from Sunday, August 31, 2025, 9:00 a.m. IST to Monday, September 01, 2025, 5:00 p.m. IST. 

 
iii. In case of any query and/or grievance, in respect of voting by electronic means, Members may refer to the 

Help & Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) and E-voting user manual available at the download section of 
https://evoting.kfintech.com (KFintech Website) or contact Mr. Mohammed Shanoor on +91 40 6716 1767 
or call KFin’s toll free No. 1-800-309-4001 for any further clarifications. 
 

iv. The Members whose names appear in the Register of Members/list of Beneficial Owners as on Wednesday, 
August 27, 2025, being the cut-off date, are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set forth in this Notice. A 
person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes only. 
Once the Member casts the vote on a resolution, the Member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently. 
 
In case a person has become a Member of the Company after dispatch of AGM Notice but on or before the 
cutoff date for E-voting, he/she may obtain the User ID and Password in the manner as mentioned below: 
 
a) If the mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No./ DP ID Client ID, the member may 

send SMS: MYEPWD <space> E-Voting Event Number + Folio No. or DP ID Client ID to 
9212993399 

 
1. Example for NSDL: MYEPWD <SPACE> XXXX IN12345612345678 
2. Example for CDSL: MYEPWD<SPACE> XXXX 1402345612345678 
3. Example for Physical: MYEPWD <SPACE> XXXX1234567890 

 
b) If e-mail address or mobile number of the member is registered against Folio No./DP ID Client ID, 

then on the home page of https://evoting.kfintech.com, the member may click “Forgot Password” and 
enter Folio No. or DP ID Client ID and PAN to generate a password. 

 
c) Members who may require any technical assistance or support before or during the AGM are 

requested to contact KFintech at toll free number 1-800-309-4001 or write to them at 
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evoting@kfintech.com.  
 
GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS: 

 
a) The Company has appointed Mr. Balarama Krishna Desina, Practising Company Secretary, Hyderabad 

(FCS No. 8168, CP. No. 22414) to act as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-Voting process and voting 
during the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit their report to the Chairman 
after the completion of scrutiny, and the result of the voting will be announced by the Chairman or any 
Director of the Company duly authorized, on or before September 05, 2025 and will also be displayed on 
the website of the Company at https://www.medinovaindia.com/, besides being communicated to the 
Stock Exchanges, Depositories and Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

 
b) All communications relating to equity shares / AGM are to be addressed to the Company’s RTA at XL 

Softech Systems Ltd 3, Sagar Society, Road No.2, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad – 500 034, Phone No: 040-
23545913/14/15, Email: xlfield@gmail.com, Website: https://xlsoftech.com/  
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Annexure to Notice 
 

Information provided pursuant to requirements given under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting in respect of individuals proposed 
to be appointed/ re-appointed as Director(s): 
 

*Private companies, Section 8 companies, foreign companies and High Value Debt Listed Entities are not 
included.  

  

Name of Director  Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy 

Director Identification Number 00108599 
Date of Birth & Age 29-10-1948 

76 years 
Date of first Appointment  25-09-2014 
Qualification He holds a bachelor’s degree in medicine from Shri 

Venkatesvara University and a provisional degree of Doctor 
of Medicine in Radiology from Osmania Medical College, 
Hyderabad. 

Designation/ Category Non-Executive Director 

Terms & Conditions of Appointment/Re-
Appointment along with Remuneration 
sought to be paid 

Being reappointed as a Director liable to retire by rotation. 
No remuneration and sitting fee is being paid for attending 
Board and Committee meetings. 

Remuneration paid for FY 2024-25 Nil 

Relationship with other Directors, Manager 
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company 

Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy is father of Mr. Sunil Chandra 
Kondapally and father in-law of Ms. B. Vishnu Priya 
Reddy. 

Brief resume and expertise in specific 
functional area 

He has over 19 years of experience, he is a life member of 
the Indian Radiological and Imaging Association. He has 
also received an award from Abbott for leadership in in-
vitro diagnostics and an award for the “Healthcare 
Entrepreneur of the year” in 2019 from Six Sigma Star 
Healthcare, New Delhi. 

In case of independent directors, the skills 
and capabilities required for the role and 
the manner in which the proposed person 
meets such requirements 

Not Applicable 

Directorships held in other Companies as 
on March 31, 2025* Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited 

Chairman / Member of the Committee of 
the Board of Directors of the Company 

Audit Committee  Member 
Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee 

 Member 

Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee 

 Member 

No. of Board Meetings attended during the 
financial year 2024-2025 

5 

Chairman / Member of the Committee of 
the Board of Directors in other Companies 
as on March 31, 2025* 

Nil 

No. of Equity Shares of ₹10/- held in the 
Company as on March 31, 2025 

 
Nil 

Names of Listed Entities from which the 
director has resigned during last three years 

 
Nil 
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BOARD’S REPORT 
 
Dear Members, 
 
The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Thirty-Second (32nd) Annual Report on the business and operations 
of Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited (‘the Company’ or ‘MDSL’) your Company along with the audited 
financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 
 
The financial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, is summarized below: 
 
                                                                                                                                          (₹ in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Standalone Consolidated 

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 
Total Income 766.87 803.90 995.85 1036.34 
Total Expenses 647.44 702.23 746.19 808.45 
Profit before Tax 119.43 101.67 249.66 227.89 
Total Tax Expenses 30.49 26.40 59.99 28.00 
Profit after Tax 88.94 75.27 189.67 199.89 
EPS (in ₹) 0.89 0.75 1.89 2.00 

 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW: 
 
STANDALONE  
 
During the year under review, the Company generated a total income of ₹766.87 lakhs, reflecting a decrease of 
approximately 4.61% compared to ₹803.90 lakhs in the previous year. Despite the decline in income, the Company 
achieved a net profit after tax of ₹88.94 lakhs, marking an increase of approximately 18.16% over the net profit of 
₹75.27 lakhs reported in the previous financial year. 
 
CONSOLIDATED  
 
During the year under review, the Company recorded a total income of ₹995.85 lakhs, representing a decrease of 
approximately 3.91% compared to ₹1,036.34 lakhs in the previous year. Similarly, the net profit after tax stood at 
₹189.67 lakhs, which is approximately 5.11% lower than the net profit of ₹199.89 lakhs reported in the previous 
financial year. 
 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
The Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2025, are prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013 (“Act”), 
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind-AS”) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 
2015 (“Listing Regulations”). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on audited 
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as approved by their respective Board of Directors. 
 
MERGER / SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on June 26, 2024, based on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, has considered and approved the Scheme of Amalgamation between Medinova Diagnostic 
Services Limited (“MDSL / The Company”) and Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited (“VDCL”), along with their 
respective shareholders and creditors, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 
2013, and rules made thereunder. 
 
The Company had filed the scheme with stock exchange i.e., BSE Limited on June 28, 2024, and received the 
observation letter with “no adverse observations” dated 5th December 2024. 
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Further, the Company has obtained approval from its shareholders at its meeting held on April 25, 2025, and the 
company has obtained the dispensation of the meeting of Unsecured Creditors and Unsecured Loan Creditor as 
they have conveyed their consent in writing for the Scheme of Amalgamation, pursuant to directions issued by the 
National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench (“NCLT”) vide their order dated March 5, 2025. 
 
A joint petition has been filed with the NCLT, Hyderabad bench on May 05, 2025, and the same is pending for 
approval before the NCLT. The Scheme would become effective from the April 01, 2024, i.e. appointed date, after 
receipt of all requisite approvals as mentioned in the Scheme. 
 
The Scheme of Amalgamation, along with other relevant documents, can be accessed on the Company’s website at: 
https://www.medinovaindia.com/investors.php  
 
DIVIDEND: 
 
The Board has not recommended any dividend for the year financial year 2024-25. 
  
TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVES: 
 
During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to reserves. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL: 
 
During the financial year 2024-25, there was no change in the authorised, subscribed, issued and paid-up share 
capital of the Company. As on March 31, 2025, the paid-up share capital of the Company stood at ₹9,98,16,400/- 
divided into 99,81,640 equity shares of ₹10/- each. 
 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES: 
 
Your Company does not have any Subsidiary Companies. However, as per explanation given to Section 2(87) of 
Companies Act, 2013 which defines Subsidiary Company, the Medinova Millennium MRI Services LLP is 
considered as a subsidiary being a body corporate.  
 
Pursuant to proviso to Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the brief details of performance and 
financials of the Subsidiary LLP for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is attached as Annexure-A and forms 
part of this Report. 
 
None of the Companies have become or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during 
the year under review. 
 
The annual financial statements of the subsidiary company will be made available to the members of the Company 
seeking such information and the same are available at the website of the Company www.medinovaindia.com 
under Investors’ section. 
 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy (DIN: 0108599), will retire by 
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offered himself for reappointment. 
 
A brief profile of Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy and other related information is detailed in the Notice convening 
the 32nd AGM of your Company. 

 
The Company has received declarations / confirmations from all the Independent Directors of the Company 
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Companies Act and Listing Regulations. 
Further all the Independent Directors have confirmed that their respective names have been included in the 
Independent Director’s Database as required under Section 150 of the Companies Act 2013. 
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In the opinion of the Board, Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Companies Act and Listing 
Regulations and are independent from management. 
 
CHANGES IN COMPOSITION OF DIRECTORS AND KMP: 
 
i. Mr. Ravi Kumar Reddy Kanamatareddy was appointed as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. June 

21, 2024, and subsequently approved by the shareholders of the company at the 31st Annual General Meeting 
held on September 3, 2024. 

ii. Mr. Nikhil Rajmal Jain resigned from the position of Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. November 
30, 2024. 

iii. Mr. Satish Bollineni was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from January 
30, 2025. 

 
Except as stated above, there were no changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during 
the year under review. 
 
MEETINGS OF BOARD:  
 
During the year under review, the Board of Directors met Five (5) times. The composition of directors, their 
attendance and other details are as follows: 
 

Date of Board 
Meeting(s) 

Name of the Directors 
Mr. K . 
Ravi 
Kumar 
Reddy 

Dr. Sura 
Surendranath 
Reddy 

Mrs. B. 
Vishnu 
Priya Reddy 

Mr. K. Sunil 
Chandra 

Mr. P 
Kamalak
ar Rao 

(Whether attended “Yes/No” ) 
April 26, 2024 NA Yes Yes Yes Yes 
June 26, 2024  Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
July 30, 2024 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 
October 29, 2024 Yes Yes Yes No Yes 
January 30, 2025 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD’S PERFORMANCE: 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act and the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out the annual 
performance evaluation of the Directors including Independent Directors, Board as a whole and Committees of the 
Board.  
 
Questionnaire(s) for the purpose of evaluation have been framed on various parameters for each of the categories. 
These include quantitative questions along with an option to provide feedback for overall performance. Evaluation 
has been carried out by way of assigning the relevant rating in the range of 1-5 in the questionnaire(s).  
 
The evaluation criteria for the Directors other than Independent Directors include adequate knowledge, 
competency, business & functional knowledge, leadership abilities, Professional conduct integrity etc. Evaluation 
criteria for Independent Directors include additional parameters such as independent judgement, independence, 
conflict of interest etc. Evaluation criteria for Committees of the Board include composition of committees, 
adequate representation of independent directors in the committees, recommendations of the Committees to the 
Board, terms of references of the Committees etc. Evaluation criteria for performance of the Board as a whole 
includes Composition of Board, Board process, corporate governance, disclosures etc. 
 
Further Independent directors had separately met to evaluate the performance of Non Independent Directors, Board 
as a whole, Chairperson and to assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between 
the Company management and the Board. 
 
The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 
The Company has constituted an Audit Committee in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules made thereunder. During the year under review, the Board of Directors reconstituted the Audit 
Committee with effect from 21st June 2024, by inducting Mr. K. Ravi Kumar Reddy, a Non-Executive Independent 
Director, as a member & Chairman of the Committee.  
 
As on March 31, 2025, the composition of Audit Committee was as follows: 
 

1. Mr. KV Ravindra Reddy               - Chairman 
2. Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy  - Member 
3. Mr. P Kamalakar Rao  - Member  

 
The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. 
 
The Audit Committee met 6 (six) times during the FY 2024-25 and the details of attendance of the meetings are as 
given hereunder; 
 
Date of Audit 
Committee 
Meeting(s) 

Name of the Members 
Mr. K Ravi 

Kumar Reddy 
(Chairman) 

Dr. S 
Surendranath 

Reddy (Member) 

Mr. P. Kamalakar Rao 
(Member) 

(Whether attended “Yes/No”) 
April 26, 2024 NA Yes Yes 
May 28, 2024 NA Yes Yes 
June 26, 2024 Yes Yes Yes 
July 30, 2024 Yes Yes Yes 
October 29, 2024 Yes Yes Yes 
January 30, 2025 Yes Yes Yes 

 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
 
The Company has constituted a Nomination & Remuneration Committee in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. During the year under review, the Board of Directors 
reconstituted the Nomination & Remuneration Committee with effect from 21st June 2024, by inducting Mr. K. 
Ravi Kumar Reddy, a Non-Executive Independent Director, as a member & Chairman of the Committee.  
  
As on March 31, 2025, the composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was as follows: 
 
1. Mr. K. Ravi Kumar Reddy                       -              Chairman 
2. Mr. P Kamalakar Rao                                      -              Member 
3. Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy                       -              Member 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 (two) times during the FY 2024-25 and the details of 
attendance of the meetings are as given hereunder; 
 
Date of 
Nomination 
Remuneration 
Committee 
Meeting(s) 

Name of the Members 
Mr. K Ravi Kumar 
Reddy (Chairman) 

Mr. P Kamalakar Rao 
(Member) 

Dr. Sura 
Surendranath  Reddy 

(Member) 

  (Whether attended “Yes/No”) 
April 26, 2024 NA Yes Yes 
January 30, 2025 Yes Yes Yes 
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STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 
The Company has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. During the year under review, the Board of Directors 
reconstituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee with effect from 21st June 2024, by inducting Mr. K. Ravi 
Kumar Reddy, a Non-Executive Independent Director, as a member & Chairman of the Committee.   
  
As on March 31, 2025, the composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was as follows: 
 
1. Mr. K. Ravi Kumar Reddy                   -        Chairman 
2. Mr. P Kamalakar Rao                           -        Member 
3. Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy               -        Member 
 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met 1 (one) time during the FY 2024-25 and the details of attendance of 
the meetings are as given hereunder; 
 
Date of 
Stakeholders 
Relationship 
Committee 
Meeting(s) 

Name of the Members 
Mr.  K. Ravi 

Kumar Reddy 
(Chairman) 

Mr. P Kamalakar 
Rao (Member) 

Dr. Sura 
Surendranath  Reddy 

(Member) 

  (Whether attended “Yes/No”) 
January 30, 2025 Yes Yes Yes 

 
VIGIL / WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, a Whistle Blower Policy for directors, 
employees and other stakeholders to report genuine concerns has been established. The same has been uploaded on 
the website of the Company and the web-link is http://www.medinovaindia.com/investors.php   
 
PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 
 
During the year under review, the Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposit within the meaning of 
Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014. 
 
 
LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS: 
 
The details of loans, guarantees/securities and investments by the Company, are provided in Notes to financial 
statements in terms of provisions of Companies Act and Listing Regulations.  
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
 
All the related party transactions entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and in ordinary 
course of business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company during the 
financial year under review. Accordingly, disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act in prescribed format Form AOC-2 is not applicable. 
 
The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions and the said policy is available at website of the 
Company at http://www.medinovaindia.com/investors.php  
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 
 
The Management Discussion and Analysis (‘MDA’) Report detailing the overall industry structure, developments, 
performance and state of affairs of the Company’s business, risks and concerns and other material developments 
during the Financial Year is annexed herewith as Annexure-B and forms an integral part of this Annual Report. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 15 of Listing Regulations, provisions relating to reporting on Corporate Governance as part 
of Annual Report of the Company, are not applicable to the Company.  
 
COST RECORDS: 
 
During the year under review, maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the 
provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. 
 
AUDITORS: 
 
a) Statutory Auditors 
 

M/s. M. Anandam & Co., Chartered Accountants, Secunderabad, (Firm Registration No. 000125S), Chartered 
Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 28th Annual General Meeting held 
on August 04, 2021 for a period of 5 years commencing form the conclusion of 28th Annual General Meeting 
till the conclusion of 33rd Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2026. The firm has consented and 
confirmed that the appointment is within the limit specified under section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 
2013. The Statutory Auditors have also confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as such in 
terms of the proviso to Section 139(1), 141(2) and 141(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

 
The Audit Report of M/s. M. Anandam & Co., on the Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2024-25 is part of this Annual Report and the report does not contain any qualification, reservation, 
adverse remark or disclaimer. Further the Auditor’s Report being self-explanatory does not call for any further 
comments from the Board of Directors. 
 
The Auditors have not reported any frauds to the Audit Committee as prescribed under Sec. 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

 
b) Secretarial Auditors 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. D. Balarama 
Krishna, Practicing Company Secretary, Hyderabad as Secretarial auditor to undertake the Secretarial Audit of 
the Company for the financial year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report is available as Annexure-C to this 
report.  
 
There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark made in the Secretarial Audit Report.  

 
c) Internal Auditors 
 

Pursuant to the provision of the Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, as amended, Ms. Muttana Venkata Ramana was appointed, as the Internal Auditor of the 
Company with effect from January 30, 2025, for the FY 2024-25 and onwards. The Internal Auditor places its 
report on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee of the company. 
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 
The particulars as prescribed under sub-section (3)(m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are as follows: 
 

A. Conservation of Energy 
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The operations of your company do not consume high levels of energy. In its endeavour towards 
conservation of energy your Company ensures optimal use of energy, avoid wastages and endeavours to 
conserve energy as far as possible. 

 
B. Technology Absorption 

 
Your Company has not carried out any research and development activities and haven’t absorbed any 
technology during the year under review. 

 
C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo: Nil 

 
ANNUAL RETURN: 
 
A copy of the Annual Return as required under Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 
has been placed on the Company’s website. The web-link as required under the Act is 
http://www.medinovaindia.com/investors.php  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
Your Company periodically assess the various elements and also procedures to mitigate such risk, from time to 
time. As on date of this report, your Company doesn’t foresee any critical risk, which threatens its existence. The 
details of the risks concerning the Company are included in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 
 
Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, scale and complexity 
of its operations. The Company has policies and procedures in place for ensuring proper and efficient conduct of its 
business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. 
 
POLICY ON NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION: 
 
In compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Act, the Company has laid down a Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy which has been uploaded on the Company’s website. The web-link as required under the Act 
is http://www.medinovaindia.com/investors.php  
 
The salient features of the NRC Policy are as under: 
 
(1) Setting out the objectives of the Policy  
(2) Appointment and removal of Directors, KMP and Senior Management 
(3) Remuneration for the Executive Directors, KMP, Senior Management Personnel & other employees  
(4) Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Directors 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
 
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed 
herewith as Annexure-D. 
 
There were no employees who had drawn remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the financial year 2024-25. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

 
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to corporate social responsibility are not 
applicable to the Company in the reporting financial year. 
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS: 
 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in the future. 
 
NATURE OF BUSINESS AND MATERIAL CHANGES: 
 
There is no change in the nature of business carried on by the Company during the year under review. 
 
There are no Material Changes and Commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which occurred 
between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this Report. 
 
DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 
 
Your Company has adopted a policy against sexual harassment in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder. The 
Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee for Redressal of complaints on sexual harassment. 
During the year, the Company had not received any complaint on sexual harassment and no complaint was pending 
as on March 31, 2025. 
 
 
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:  
 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, 
your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, hereby confirm that: 
 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures; 
 

b) we have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2025 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date; 
 

c) we have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities; 
 

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
 

e) the Company had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
 

f) we have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively.  

 
DISCLSOURE RELATED TO INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY: 
 
During the year under review, there is no application made and/or no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 
DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF VALUATION AT THE TIME OF ONE-
TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF TAKING A LOAN FROM 
THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF: 
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During the year under review, the Company has not made any settlement with its bankers for any loan(s) / 
facility(ies) availed or / and still in existence. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT:  
 
Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation and thanks for the valuable cooperation and support 
received from the employees of the Company at all levels, Company’s Bankers, Associates, partners, clients, 
vendors, and Members of the Company and look forward for the same in equal measure in the coming years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: May 3, 2025  
Place: Hyderabad 
 
 

 
By the Order of the Board 

For Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited 
 

Sd/- 
Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy  

Chairman  
DIN: 00108599 
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Annexure-A 

FORM NO. AOC-1 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiary as on March 31, 2025 
 

Name of the Subsidiary: Medinova Millennium MRI Services LLP 
 

Details (Amount ₹ in lakhs) 
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 
different from the holding company's reporting period 

Same as holding company 

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date 
of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries. 

Not applicable 

Capital 230.27 
Reserves (Other Equity) 61.42 
Total Assets 339.17 
Total Liabilities 47.47 

Turnover                       235.45 
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 130.26 
Deferred tax expenditure/(credit)             1.61 
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 100.76 
Proposed dividend  - 
% of shareholding 100 
Investment   - 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Date: May 3, 2025 
Place: Hyderabad 
 

By the Order of the Board 
For Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy  

Chairman  
DIN: 00108599 
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Annexure-B 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Industry structure and developments 
 
The diagnostic laboratories serve as an integral component of the healthcare system. They play a crucial role in 
assisting the decision-making process regarding patients’ health. Through varied diagnostic tests and procedures, 
these laboratories assist healthcare providers to arrive at correct diagnoses. Additionally, the Indian diagnostic 
sector is witnessing transition from a fragmented network of isolated labs to a structured and scalable ecosystem, 
with national and regional players expanding their geographical presence. Heightened demand for high-quality 
healthcare, augmented consumer awareness and progress in technology is further bolstering this transition in the 
industry. Digitization, automation and AI-powered innovations are elevating the efficiency and accuracy of the 
Indian diagnostic industry. Further to this, the growth in the Indian diagnostic industry can be attributed to the 
growing geriatric population, increasing health awareness among individuals, advancement in diagnostic 
technologies and a changing lifestyle. Unhealthy lifestyle is elevating the incidence of chronic diseases, creating 
the need for regular diagnostic monitoring. 
 
Opportunities and Threats 
 
Opportunities 
 
1. Demographic 

 
Growing population is creating a large and expanding market for diagnostic services. In addition, the rising 
number of people aged over 40, who are more likely to avail diagnostics services, is increasing the need for 
regular health checks and disease management. This change highlights how important diagnostic testing has 
become, acting as a key part of both preventive care and ongoing treatment. 
 

2. Rising Demand for Early Disease Detection 
 
Growing awareness about the importance of early diagnosis for conditions such as cancer, diabetes, and 
cardiovascular diseases is driving demand for diagnostic tests. Preventive healthcare initiatives by governments 
and insurers also promote regular diagnostic testing. 

 
3. Personalized and Precision Medicine 

 
Demand for personalized treatment plans is pushing the need for companion diagnostics that match patients 
with specific therapies. Genetic and molecular diagnostics are becoming integral in tailoring treatments for 
conditions like cancer and rare genetic disorders. 
 

4. Aging Population 
 
The global rise in aging populations leads to a higher incidence of chronic diseases, which increases the need for 
regular and complex diagnostic tests. 

 
Threats 
 
1. Regulatory Challenges 

 
Strict regulatory approval processes (e.g., by FDA, EMA) can delay the launch of new products. Compliance 
with evolving international standards and local regulations can be complex and costly. 
 

2. High R&D Costs 
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Developing innovative diagnostic technologies involves high investment and long lead times, with no guarantee 
of commercial success. Smaller companies may struggle to compete or bring products to market due to capital 
constraints. 
 

3. Price Pressures and Reimbursement Issues 
 
Cost-containment efforts by healthcare systems and insurers may lead to reduced reimbursement rates or 
pressure to lower test prices. Inadequate insurance coverage for advanced tests can limit their accessibility and 
commercial viability. 
 

4. Intense Competition 
 
The industry is highly competitive, with large multinational corporations dominating the space and constantly 
innovating. Market saturation in some segments (like routine blood tests) puts pressure on profit margins. 

 
Outlook 
 
A strong focus on adhering to the highest quality standards and aligning with medical accreditations will remain the 
key focus of the Company, such that its reputation as a reliable and accurate diagnostic in India. Along with this, 
consistent efforts are made to improve the experience it offers to its patients by making the entire process smoother 
and convenient. The Company focuses on improving its overall operational efficiencies through implementing cost 
reduction strategies, improving the IT system and delivering quicker test results. 
 
Risks and concerns 
 
Competition Risk: The Company faces intense competition from new players including large conglomerates, 
hospital chains, pharma companies, health tech platforms and startup companies, which may weaken the outlook, 
slow down growth, and put price pressures to bring margin and return ratios under stress. 
 

To mitigate this risk, the Company emphasizes redefining its cost-base to neutralize some of the stress on returns. 
 
Technological Risk: The Company operates in a highly technology-driven market. Technological advancements in 
the field may result in a decline in demand for the Company’s products and services. 
 

To mitigate this risk, the Company focuses on offering tests which are more accurate and economical, as compared 
to those available in the market. 
 
Skilled Manpower Shortage Risk: The Company’s success depends on its ability to find and retain outstanding 
employees, and failing to do so could significantly harm its performance. 
 

To mitigate this risk, the Company focuses on an engaging HR practice and strives to make it a desirable place to 
work. 
 
Internal control systems and their adequacy  
 
The Company has an efficient internal control system in place. The policies and procedures, covering financial and 
operating functions, are also documented. The system controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance for 
maintaining proper accounting records. This reinforces reliability of financial reporting, monitoring of operations, 
and protection of assets from unauthorized use or losses and compliance of regulations. 
 
The scope and coverage of audits include: 
 

 Reviewing and reporting of key process risks 
 Adhering to operating guidelines and statutory compliances 
 Recommending improvements for monitoring and enhancing efficiency of operations 
 Ensuring reliability of financial and operational information 

 
The Audit Committee periodically monitors and reviews the significant internal audit observations. It also reviews 
compliance with accounting standards, risk management and control systems. 
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Human Resource  
 
‘Human Resources’ are recognized as a key pillar of any successful organization and so is for Medinova. The 
company puts constant efforts in recruiting and training the employees and ensures to bring out the best of them. 
The company adopts an HR policy and ensures that all the employees are aware of personnel policies. The needs of 
the employees are addressed with high importance and efforts are made to provide a highly challenging and healthy 
environment. Besides all these, the company places high emphasis on professional etiquette required of every 
employee. As on March 31, 2025 the number of employees employed are 50. 
 
Financial Performance of the Company 
 
During the year under review, the Company generated a total income of ₹766.87 lakhs, reflecting a decrease of 
approximately 4.61% compared to ₹803.90 lakhs in the previous year. Despite the decline in income, the Company 
achieved a net profit after tax of ₹88.94 lakhs, marking an increase of approximately 18.16% over the net profit of 
₹75.27 lakhs reported in the previous financial year. 
 
During the year under review, the Company recorded a total income of ₹995.85 lakhs, representing a decrease of 
approximately 3.91% compared to ₹1,036.34 lakhs in the previous year. Similarly, the net profit after tax stood at 
₹189.67 lakhs, which is approximately 5.11% lower than the net profit of ₹199.89 lakhs reported in the previous 
financial year. 
 
Key Financial Ratios 
 
In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Company is 
required to give details of significant changes (change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous 
financial year) in key financial ratios. The company has identified the following ratios as Key Financial Ratios: 
 

*Since the total equity is negative, ratio is not given. 
**Net worth of the company is negative. 
 
Cautionary statement  
 
Statements in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be ‘forward-looking statements’ within the meaning of 
applicable laws and regulations. Such statements represent the intention of the Management and the efforts being 

Particulars 
FY 

2025 
FY 

2024 
Reason for variance 

Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) 4 8 

This ratio has Decreased from 8 in March 2023 
to 4 in March 2024 mainly due to Decrease in 
Cost of goods sold and increase in closing 
inventory 

Debtors Turnover Ratio (in times) 2.72 3.49 - 

Current Ratio (in times) 0.58 0.40 

This ratio has increased from 0.40 in March 2024 
to 0.58 in March 2025 mainly due to increase in 
Trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents 
and decrease in other financial liabilities on 
account of repayment of interest on borrowings. 

Interest Coverage Ratio (in times) 3.39 3.39  
- 

Debt Equity Ratio* -- -- - 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) 3.06 1.09 

This ratio has increased from 1.09 in March 2024 
to 3.06 in March 2025 mainly due to increase in 
Profit after tax and there is no repayment of 
borrowing during the year. 

Operating Profit margin (%) 18.71 18.71 - 

Net Profit margin (%) 11.78 9.67 - 

Return on net worth (%)** -- -- - 
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put into place by them to achieve certain goals. These assertions are predicated on a number of assumptions and 
future activities. Since the Company's operations are impacted by several internal and external factors outside of its 
control, actual results could significantly differ from those stated or inferred. Any forward-looking statement 
published here only speaks as of the date it was made and only reflects the Company's current intentions, beliefs, or 
assumptions. The Company disclaims any obligation to update or modify any forward-looking statements, whether 
as a result of new data, unexpected developments, or other factors. Readers are urged to use their best judgement 
when determining the risks connected to the Company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: May 3, 2025 
Place: Hyderabad 
 

By the Order of the Board 
For Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited 

 
Sd/- 

Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy  
Chairman  

DIN: 00108599 
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Annexure – C 
FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31St MARCH, 2025 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
To,  
The Members, 
Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited 
CIN: L85110TG1993PLC015481 
Hyderabad.  
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited (hereinafter called the 
company).  
 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided 
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, 
I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the 
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner 
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
1. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2025, according to the provisions of: 
 
1.1.The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

 
1.2.The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

 
1.3.The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

 
1.4.Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; [NOT APPLICABLE AS THERE IS NO FOREIGN INVESTMENT IN/BY 
THE COMPANY] 

 
1.5.The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 
 
1.5.1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
 

1.5.2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015; 
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1.5.3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018; [NOT APPLICABLE AS THERE WAS NO FRESH 
ISSUE OF CAPITAL DURING THE YEAR] 

 
1.5.4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021; [NOT APPLICABLE AS THERE WAS NO STOCK 
OPTION GIVEN TO THE EMPLOYEES] 

1.5.5. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021; [NOT APPLICABLE AS THERE WAS NO NON-
CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES LISTED ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE] 

 
1.5.6. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
 

1.5.7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2021; [NOT APPLICABLE AS THERE WAS NO DELISTING OF EQUITY 
SHARES DURING THE YEAR] and 
 

1.5.8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 
[NOT APPLICABLE AS THERE WAS NO BUYBACK OF SECURITIES BY THE 
COMPANY DURING THE YEAR] 

 
2. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

2.1. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 

2.2.  SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
3. The Company is engaged in the Business of Medical diagnostic services. Accordingly, the following 

Industry Specific Acts are applicable to the Company, in view of the Management and as per the 
Guidance Note issued by the ICSI. Based on the explanation given, there are adequate system and 
process in the company to monitor and ensure the compliance of following sector specific law, rule, 
regulation and guidelines: 

 
3.1.  Pre-Conception and Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques (Prohibition of Sex Selection) Act, 

1994 (“PCNDT Act”) and the Pre-Natal Diagnostic Techniques (Regulation and Prevention 

of Misuse) Act, 1994(“PNDT Act”). 

3.2. The Clinical Establishments (Registration and Regulations) Act, 2010. 

3.3. The Clinical Establishments (Central Government) Rules, 2012 (“CECG Rules”). 

3.4.  West Bengal Clinical Establishment (Registration, Regulation and Transparency), 

Act 2017. 

3.5. West Bengal Shops and Establishments Act, 1963. 

3.6. Bio Medical Waste (BMW) Authorisation- West Bengal Pollution Control Board. 

3.7. Indian Atomic Energy Act 1962 & Atomic Energy (Radiation Protection) Rules 2004. 

3.8. Atomic Energy (Safe Disposal of Radioactive Wastes) Rules, 1987 (“Radioactive Waste 

Rules”). 
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3.9. Radiation Surveillance Procedures for Medical Application of Radiation, 1989 (“Surveillance 

Procedures”). 

3.10. Safety Code for Medical Diagnostic X-Ray Equipment and Installations, 2001 (the “X-Ray 

Safety Code”). 

3.11. Atomic Energy Regulatory Board- Safety Code on Safe Transport of Radioactive  Material 

AERB/NRF- TS/SC- 1, 2015 (“Transport Code”). 

3.12. Atomic Energy Regulatory Board - Safety code on Nuclear Medicine Facilities  dated 

November 4, 2010 (“Nuclear Medicine Code”). 

3.13. Radiation Surveillance Procedure for Medical Applications of Radiation, 1989 (“RSPM 

Notification”). 

3.14. The Environment Protection Act, 1986 (the “Environment Protection Act”) and The 

Environment (Protection) Rules, 1986 (the “Environment Protection Rules”). 

3.15. Bio-Medical Waste Management Rules, 2016 (“BMW Rules”). 

3.16. National Accreditation Board for Testing and Calibration Laboratories (“NABL”). 

3.17. Guidelines for Exchange of Human Biological Material for Biomedical Research Purposes, 

1997 (“HBM Guidelines”). 

3.18. Consumer Protection Act, 2019 (“COPRA, 2019”). 

 
4. I further report that: 
 

4.1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors, if any, that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
 

4.2. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting. And wherever, shorter notice has been sent, the 
relevant provisions have been complied. 

 
 

4.3. All the decisions at the Board and Committee meetings are carried out unanimously as 
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, 
as the case may be. 

 
4.4. There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 

 
5. I further report that during the audit period there were following specific events / actions having a 

major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines, standards, etc: 
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5.1. The Company in its Board Meeting held on 26th June, 2024 has approved the scheme of 
Amalgamation, inter alia, involving the amalgamation of Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited, 
The Holding Company. 

 
5.2. Mr. Nikhil Rajmal Jain, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and KMP of the Company has 

resigned vide letter dated 16th November, 2024 and was relieved from his duties w.e.f. 30th 
November, 2024. Mr. Satish Bollineni has been appointed as the CFO of the Company in the 
Board Meeting held on 30th January, 2025 with effect from the same date. 

 
 

   
UDIN: F008168G000841836 
 

 
 

Note: This letter is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed, and form an integral part of this report.  

 

  

Date: July 26, 2025 
Place: Hyderabad 

Sd/- 
Balaramakrishna Desina 

     Proprietor 
    Balaramakrishna & Associates 

Company Secretaries in Practice  
FCS No.: 8168  

       C.P. No.: 22414 
Peer Review Certificate No. 5448/2024 
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ANNEXURE 
 
To,  
The Members,  
Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited, 
CIN: L85110TG1993PLC015481 
Hyderabad. 
 
SUBJECT: My Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 
 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done to ensure that correct 
facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a 
reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 

Company. 
 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 

the responsibility of the Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
 
 
 

UDIN: F008168G000841836 

 
      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Annexure - D 

Date: July 26, 2025 
Place: Hyderabad 

Sd/- 
Balaramakrishna Desina 

     Proprietor 
    Balaramakrishna & Associates 

Company Secretaries in Practice  
FCS No.: 8168  

       C.P. No.: 22414 
Peer Review Certificate No. 5448/2024 
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Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the financial year 2023-24 
 
1. The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for 

the financial year: 
 

Not Applicable as no remuneration has been paid to Directors of the Company including Managing Director 
other than sitting fee paid to Non-Executive Independent Directors during the year under review. 

 
2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer; Chief Executive Officer, 

Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year was – Not Applicable as no remuneration has 
been paid. 

 
3. The median remuneration of employees in the financial year was decreased by 0.04%. 

 
4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2025, were 50. 

 
5. Average percentiles increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in 

the last financial year was 5%. 
 
Its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof - Not 
applicable. 
 
Exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration - Not applicable. 

 
6. We affirm that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration policy of the Company. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: May 3, 2025 
Place: Hyderabad 
 

 
By the Order of the Board 

For Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited 
 

Sd/- 
Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy  

Chairman  
DIN: 00108599 

  

 

 

 
 

 
 



M. ANANDAM & Co.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“md AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to Note 35 of the financial statements which states that subsequent to the
balance sheet date, the Company received shareholders’ approval on April 25, 2025 for the Scheme
of Amalgamation with its Holding Company, Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited, effective from April 1,
2024. The Scheme of Amalgamation is pending approval from the National Company Law Tribunal,
Hyderabad.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were

7 ‘A’, SIJRYA TOWERS. SARDAR PATEL ROAD. SECUI
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M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than Financial Statements (Other Information)

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors Report but does not include the standalone
financial statements, consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted~ with SAs will always detect

Page 2 of 12
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M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
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relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 1(b) above and paragraph 1(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such internal financial controls with
reference to the standalone financial statements, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

(h) The Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. Hence the
provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

(I) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements (Refer Note 21 of the standalone financial statements).

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that (Refer Note 34(v) of the Standalone financial
statements), to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
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borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security orthe like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that (Refer Note 34(vi) of the Standalone financial
statements), to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the Company, hence, the provisions
of section 123 of the Act are not applicable.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned
below, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares:

• The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database
level to log any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining the
books of account relating to general ledger and customer billing.

• The Company uses accounting software operated by a third-party service provider to
maintain its books of account relating to payroll. In the absence of sufficient and
appropriate reporting on compliance with audit trail requirements in the independent
auditor’s report of the third-party service provider for the period from 01-04-2024 to 31-
12-2024, and in the absence of an independent auditor’s report for the period from 01-
01-2025 to 31-03-2025, we are unable to comment on whether the audit trail feature
was enabled and operational throughout the financial year under audit for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software, or whether there were any instances of
tampering with the audit trail feature.

Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year
for respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail in respect of the previous year has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except for the instances
mentioned below:

• In case of the accounting software used for maintaining general ledger and customer
billing, the audit trail is not preserved for the database level.
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• In case of an accounting software used for maintaining payroll records, we are unable to
comment whether the audit trail has been preserved by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 0001255)

M. V. Abhiram
Partner
Membership No.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03rd May, 2025
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of the Company of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements of Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to the standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to the standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to the standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed
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under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the standalone financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to the standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to the standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the standalone financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to the standalone financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to the standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

For M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.

M. V. Abhiram
Partner
Membership No.26(

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03rd May, 2025
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
With reference to Paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of the Company, we report that —

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:
a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment so as
to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program,
certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification and were physically verified
by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to
us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) The Company does not own immovable properties and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets
during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and in our opinion, the coverage, frequency and procedure of such verification
is reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its
business. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book
records were not exceeding 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

b) The Company was not sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 Crore during the
year from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Hence
reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii. During the year, the Company has not made investments, not provided loans or advances in the
nature of loans or not stood guarantee or not provided security in/to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not
applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of making investments. The
Company has not granted loans, or provided guarantees and securities.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by
the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:
a) In our opinion, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,

including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. Sales
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Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Excise and Customs duty are not applicable to the
Company.
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax Cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and records of the Company
examined by us, the particulars of statutory dues which are disputed as at March 31, 2025
are as follows —

Name of Nature Amount Amount Period to Forum where
the of the (Rs. in paid which the the dispute is
statute dues Iakhs) under amount pending

protest relates
(Rs. In
Iakhs)

Finance Service Tax 1.68 0.64 2017-18 Commissioner of
Act, 1994 Service Tax

(Appeals)
Goods and GST 13.17~ 1.32# 2017-18, GST Appellate
Services 2018-19, Authority*
Act, 2017 2019-20

~Order was passed against the assessee on 31-01-2025
#The amount was paid vide challan dated 14-04-2025
*The appeal has been filed on 15-04-2025.

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43
of 1961).

ix. a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings and in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

c) During the year, the company has not obtained any term loans and hence clause 3 (ix) (c) of
the Order is not applicable.

d) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

e) On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiary. The Company does not have associates or joint ventures.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiary. The Company does not have associates or joint ventures.

x. a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
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Order is not applicable.
b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally convertible) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. a) In our opinion and based on our examination and enquiries with the management, no fraud
by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the financial year under audit.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act is required to be filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order
is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv. a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

xv. In our opinion the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) The Company is not engaged in any non-banking financial housing finance activities.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

c) The Company is not a core investment company as defined in the Regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no core investment
company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
app1 icable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in
the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
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payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under clause (xx) (a)
and (b) of the Order are not applicable.

For M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 000125

M.~Abhiram

Membership~

P lace: Hyderabad
Date: 03rd May, 2025
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II Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets

Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS (I + 11)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other Equity
Total equity

9 (a) 995.68
9(b) (1,115.32)

(119.64)

995.68
(1,202.28)

(206.60)

Liabilities
II Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings

(b) Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

10(5) 500.00
12 20.05

520.05

500.00
22.19

522.19

Place: Hydershad
Date: 03 May. 2025

2.48

228.58
17.58
4.95
7.89
1.23

262.71

782.76
663.12

3.03

228.79
32.77

5.92
l3.l6

1.90
285.57

807.76
601.16

Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at Maceli 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Asat Asat
Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 (a) 129.45 97.97
(b) Intangible assets 4 (b) 2.68 3.64
(c) Financial assets

(I) Investments 5 (a) 296.82 296.82
(ii) Other financial assets 5 (c) 30.22 25.27

(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 40.38 50.13
(e) Non-current tax assets (itet) 20 (d) 11.89 11.89
Total non-current assets 51 1.44 485.72

7 11.63 10.22

5 (b) 47.71 37.23
5 (d) 88.08 61.20
5(e) 0.91 0.76

8 3.35 6.03
151.68 115.44
663.12 60I.16

Ill Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables 10(b)
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than tnicro and small enterprises

(ii) Other financial liabilities 10(c)
(b) Other current liabilities 11
(c)Provisions 12
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 20 (d)
Total current Iiubihities

Total liabilities (11 + III
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIAulLrrlEs (I + II + Ill)
Corporate Information

Basis of preparatiots and mea~,urensent and material
accounting nolicies 2&3

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
ForM. Anandam & Co.
Chartered A st~

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Medlisova Diagnostic Services Limited
CIN:L851 10TG1993PLC015481

Dr. Sura Surendranatlt Reddy
Cltairmnais
DIN: 00108599

p ~ ~3i~y~/
ii Cliandra Kondapall

tiaging Di ctor
DIN: 01409332

~sra~sRSt
Csinpaisy SecretaryChief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Dame: 03 May, 2025
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(a) Revenue from operations
(b) Other income
Total income

2 Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed
(b) Employee benefits expense
(c) Testing Fees
(d) Finance costs
(e) Depreciation and smortisstion expenses
(f) Other expenses
Total expenses

3 Profit before tax 11 -2)

4 Tax expense
(a) Current tax
(b) Earlier year’s tax
(c) Deferred tax
Total tax expense

5 Profit for the year 13-4)

8 Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10
each, fully paid)
- Basic (in Rs.)
- Diluted (in Rs.)

Corporate Information

Basis of preparation and measurement and material

As per our report of even date attached
For M. Anandam & Co.

[Firm registration number: 000 125S

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
CIN:L85 1 10TG1993PLC015481

Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise statedl

Notes For the year ended For the year ended

I Income March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
754.81

12.06
766.87

778.12
25.78

803.90

13
14

15
16

17
18
19

20

6 Other comprehensive income
itenis that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations
(b) Income-tax relating to above item 20
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of income tax)

7 Total comprehensive income for the year (5 + 61

22

50.07 85.51
163.74 173.13
83.40 60.06
50.00 57.40
14.14 12.30

286.10 313.84
647.44 702.23

119.43 101.67

19.66 20.39
0.42 0.01

10.42 6.00
30.49 26.40

88.94 75.27

(2.64) 1.63
0.67 (0.41)

(1.98) 1.22

86.96 76.49

0.89
0.89

accounting policies 2&3
The notes referred to above fomi an integral part of [lie standalone financial statements

0.75
0.75

~tercd Accountants

Membership Number: 266427
,9 . nra Surendranath ReddyChairman

DIN: 00108599

1~i
Satish
Chief Financial Officer

&i~
~

H~r~Sing’~ Raj put
Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 May, 2025

46



A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Net (gain)/loss on sate of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Provision for credit impaired receivables
Liabilities no longer required written back
Finance costs

Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities
Changes in working capital items:

Decrease/(lncrease) in trade reccivablea
Decrease/(lncrease) in inventories
Decrease?(lncrease) in other financial assets
Decrease?(lncrease) in other tax aaseta
Decrease!(lncrease) in other current assets
lncrcasel(Decrease) in trade payables
lncrease/(Decrease) in provisions and other liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations
liscome tax paid
Net cash from operating activities

B Cash flows front investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds front sale of propel-ty, plant and eqaipnsent
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities

C Cash flows front financing activities
Borrowing? (Repayment) of Loan from Holding Company
Interest paid
Net cash froin?(used in) financing activities

Net increase! (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Casts and casts equivalents at thc beginning of the year
Casts and cash equivalents at end of the Year

As per our report of evets date attached
ForM. Anandam & Co.
Chartered Accoutstatsts
ICAI Firm registration nuniber: 0001 25S

M. V. Abhiratts
Partner
Membership Number: 266427

Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

For the year ended
sA....,.k21 10,5

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

119.43 101.67

14.14
3.20

(1.10)

(2.72)
50.00

182.95

(10.48)
(1.41)
(4.68)
(8.05)
2.68
1.96

(11.72)
(2.52)

148.73

136.73

2.30
(0.09)
(1.16)
18.00
(4.48)
57.40

183.64

11.97
1.03

(0.10)
(10.16)

1.85
(4.40)

(15.44)
(7.60)

160.79

150.54

(50.59) (19.04)
2.73 0.11
0.68 0.77

(47.t8) (18.16)

- (75.00)
(62.67) (57.49)
(62.67) (132.49)

26.88
61.20
88.08

Note:
(a) The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the indirect Method’ asset out in the Indian Accounting Standard (md AS
7)- Statement of Cash Flows.

(0.11)
61.31
61.20

(b) Cash and cash equivalents mentioned above comprise the following:
Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash on hand 2.26 1.56
Balances with banks

- in curreist accounts 85.82 59.64
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5(d)) 88.08 61.20

(c) Net Debt Reconciliation
Asat Asat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance of borrowings 500.00 575.00
Add:- Proceeds from borrosviisgs during the year - -

Less:- Repayment of borrowings during the year - (75.00)
Fair Value Adjustment - -

Closing balance of borrowings 500.00 500.00
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the standalone flisaiscial stotementa.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 May, 2025

Medinova Diagnostic Services Linsited
CIN L85t IOTGI993PLCOI548I

For attd on behalf of the Board of

~~ura:rendranathdy nil Chandra Kondapa ls.,,,,,,

Chairman /
DIN 00108599 Maisagiisg DirectorDIN Numimber 01 ~‘~32

Sa~’~n’
- ‘ - Hansr Singh •ajput

Chief Financial Officer Conspany Secretary

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 03 May. 2025
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As per our report of even date attached

For M. Anandam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Al Firm registration

M.V.A hiram
Partner
Membership

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 May, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
C I1OTG1993PLC 1

Chairman Reddy
DIN: 00108599

SS~neni
Chief Financial Officer

Medisiova Diagnostic Services Limited
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)
A. Equity Share Capital

. Asat AsatParticulars Note 31 March 2025 31 March, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 9(a) 995.68 995.68
Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year 995.68 995.68

B.Other Equity

Reserves and surplus Total
Particulars General reserve Securities premium Retained earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2024 62.46 51.55 (1,316.29) (1,202.28)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - 88.94 88.94
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - (1.98) (1.98)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 86.96 86.96
Balance as at March 31, 2025 62.46 51.55 (1,229.33) (1,115.32)

Reserves and surplus Total
Particulars General reserve Securities premium Retained earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2023 62.46 51.55 (1,392.79) (1,278.77)
Profitl(Loss) for the year - - 75.27 75.27
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - 1.22 1.22
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 76.49 76.49
Balance as at March 31, 2024 62.46 51.55 (1,316.29) (1,202.28)

Sunil Ch ra Kondapally
Managing Director
DIN 01409 32

Han ‘Sin R jput
Company Seer tary

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 May. 2025
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Medi va Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1 C rporate Information
t~1t.~dinova Diagnostic Scrvices Limited (the Company) is a Public limited Company domiciled in India and was incorporated on March 11, 1993
utlr.4er the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at #7-1-58, Unit No.1/Flat No.
~ 1, 3rd Floor, Amrutha Business Complex, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 016, Telangana, India. The Company is a subsidiary of Vijaya Diagnostic
c~ntre Limited

e Company is engaged in the business of providing comprehensive range of diagnostic services spanning pathological investigations, radiology &
aging, conventional, specialized lab services and diagnostic cardiology.

2 B sis of preparation and measurement

(i) s ~tement of compliance

~ standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (md AS) as per the

C inpanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions
of the Act under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, notified
uriIIer the Act and Rules prescribed thereunder.

Thestandalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods
pr~Sented in the standalone financial statements except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
~~~0Unting standard requires change in accounting policy hitherto in use.

Th~ standalone financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 03-05-2025.

(ii) Fuiictlonal and presentation currency
TI-J~SC standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All financial
j1~fcflmation presented in Indian rupees have been rounded-off to two decimal places to the nearest lakh except share data or as otherwise stated.

(iii) Ba IS of measurement
n~ standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities : Measured at fair value or ainortised costs

- Net defined benefit (asset)! liability : Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations

- Borrowings : Arnortised cost using effective interest rate method

(iv) Use of estimates and judgements

~ preparing these standalone financial statements, Management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
5~counting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judge”ents

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the standalone
financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 6- Defemred tax assets: whether the company has convincing evidence to recognise deferred tax assets

AssrgInplroIzs and estiniation uncertainties
Inforn~ation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial
year are included in the following notes:

- Note 26— measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Notes 12— recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resources;

- Note 5 — impairment of financial assets;

- Note 4 - detennining an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life
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Med inova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes f~ the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(v) lVlsasurement of fair values
~..ccounting polices and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and non-financial assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
irieasurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

— In the principal market for the asset or liability or
— In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

T~hs principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value,
inacimising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
desived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the
fairvalue of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred,

Fuiiher information about the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Note 29 - Financial instruments

(vi) Current and non-current classification:
The Schedule III to the Act requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either current or non-current. The Company presents assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet based on current! non-current classification.

Assets
An asset is classified as a current when it is:
- it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
- it is expected to be realised within twelve months from the reporting date;
- it is held primarily for the purposes of being traded; or
- is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
All other assets are classified as non current

Liabilities
A liability is classified as a current when:
- it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
- it is due to be settled within twelve months fi’om the reporting dale;
- it is held primarily for the purposes of being traded;
- Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.
- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of liability for atleast twelve months from the reporting date.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating Cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
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Med Jnova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

3 s. unimary of material accounting policies
A. fZ.cvenue recognition

~ f~scoine front diagnostic services

~?.evcnue from Diagnostic services is recognized on amount billed net of discounts! concessions if any. No elcment of financing is deemed present as
ti-le sales are made primarily on cash and carry basis, however for institutional! organisational customers a credit period of 30 days is given, which is
e~flSiStent with market practice.

,&~ contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the customer, If a
ct~istomer pays consideration before the Company transfer services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

T12e Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and when the underlying tests are conducted, samples are processed for requisitioned diagnostic tests. Each service is generally a separate
performance obligation and therefore revenue is recognised at a point in time when the tests are conducted, samples are processed. For multiple tests,
the Company measures the revenue in respect of each performance obligation at its relative stand alone selling price and the transaction price is
allocated accordingly. The price that is regularly charged for a test separately registered is considered to be the best evidence of its stand alone selling
price. Revenue contracts are on principal to principal basis and the Company is primarily responsible for fulfilling the performance obligation.

B. Recognition of interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

C. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Bon’owing costs directly attributable to acquisition or
construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are eapitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred,

D. Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a Financial Asset of one entity and Financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i) Initial Recognition and nleasureinent
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or inue.

ii~ classification and subsequent measurenient

Financial assets
All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Subsequent measurement: For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are eategorised as under:
- Amortised cost;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — equity investment; or

- Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
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Medi a~va Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

D. Fi~iancial instruments (continued)

10 cfssszjication and subsequent ~neasurement (continued)
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
innoaging financial assets.

A fnancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
atriount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
in~vestment’s fair value in OCT (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at anortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recegnised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at arnortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or Loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recoveiy of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCT and are not reclassified to
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
ainortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

111,1 Derecognition

Financial assets
A Financial asset is primarily derecognised when the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its tenns are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the canying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

iv~) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently and legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Mediilova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes ~o the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

E. pr—operty, plant and equipment

()~aitd nzeasuremeni
Fr~eh0ld land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical Cost less accumulated depreciation
arid accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
nnr~refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition
for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. If significant parts of an item
of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
eqUipment.

5~bsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
ec~floiTiic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss
d~x-ing the reporting period in which they are incurred. If an item of property, plant and equipment is purchased with deferred credit period from
supplier, such asset is recorded at its cash price equivalent value.

jo Depreciation
Depreciation is provided using the Written down value Method (WDV) upto 31st December 2022, over the useful lives of the assets as estimated by
the Management based on technical evaluation. Depreciation on additions and deletions are restricted to the period of use. Assets costing below Rs.
5,000 are depreciated in full in the same year.

With effect from 1st Januaiy 2023, the Company has changed its method of depreciation on all Property, Plant and Equipment from Written Down
Value (‘WDV”) method to Straight Line Method (“SLM”), based upon the technical assessment of expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the assets.
The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Asset description Useful life in years as estimated by the management Useful life in years as estimated as per schedule II
Leasehold improvments 10 10
plant & Machinery 5 to 10 5 to 10
Computers and networks 3 to 6 3 to 6
Furnitures & Fixtures 5 to 10 . 5 to 10

Residual value is considered to be 5% on all the assets, as technically estimated by the management.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. Gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and equipment which are carried at cost are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

F. Intangible assets

~ Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired, are recognized at cost initially and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss,

if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

ii.) amortization
UptO December 31, 2022, amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives using the “writen down value’ (WDV) method, and is included in depreciation and amortization in statement of profit and loss.

With effect from 1st Januamy 2023, the Company has changed its method of amortization from Written Down Value (“WDV’) method to Straight Line
Method (“SLM”), based upon the technical assessment of expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the intangible
assets.

The estimated useful life is as follows:
- Software 3 years

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.

G. Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is recognized at cost. It comprises of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use at the
reporting date.
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Medisova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes ts the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
H. Inventories

In.~entories comprise of diagnostic kits, reagents, laboratory chemicals and consumables, these are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for
recoverable taxes, if any. Cost is determined on First-in-First-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item
basis.

I. Irsipairment of assets

i) Iriipairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost. At each reporting date, the
Company assesses whether financial assets carried at arnortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating expected credit
losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

Measurement ofexpected credit losses
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation ofallowancefor expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to
comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows. To
determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.
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Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
I. Isnpairment of assets (Continued)
ii) Inpairment of non-financial assets (continued)

~n impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

In respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any
indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carlying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss has been recognised.

J. Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured on an undiscounted basis at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

~~ii,) Dsfined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme and EST. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement
of profit and loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees.

‘iii~) Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Rerneasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtaihuents are recognised immediately in profit or
loss as past service cost.

civ.) Other long-term employee benefits
The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the
market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

K. Leases

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course.

Company as a Lessor:
Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as a finance or operating lease. When ever the terms of a lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating leases are recognised on straight line basis over the term of relevant lease.
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K. Leases (Continued)

Company as a Lessee:
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of md AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant
judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise That option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain
n~t to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option
to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend
the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a
lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

Thìe Company has elected not to apply the requirements of md AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or
less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease tenTh

L. Traconae-tax
Income-tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

(‘:~ (‘girrent tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to
realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

~iz? Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction; and
- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that
sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised, Deferred tax assets — um’ecognised or recognised, are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised! reduced to the extent that it is probable! no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit
will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the canying amount of its assets and liabilities.

M. Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised under
finance costs. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

contingencies:
Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigations, assessments, fines and penalties are recognised when it is probable that a
liability has been incurred and the amount can be estimated reliably.
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M. Frovision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)
Goittingent liabilities and contingent assets:
~ contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are
disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets has to be recognised in the financial statements in the period in which if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will
arise. Contingent assets are assessed continually and no such benefits were found for the current financial year.

N. Earnings per share

Basic Earnings Per Share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless issued at
a later date. In computing diluted earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces earnings per share or increases
loss per share are included. The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for the
share splits.

0. Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit! (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. The cash flows from regular revenue generating (operating activities), investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

P. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Q. Investments in subsidiaries
Investments representing equity interest in subsidiaries carried at cost less any provision for impairment. Investments are reviewed for impairment if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

R. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such
events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

S. Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 3 1, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the
existing standards appliable to the Company.
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4 (a) Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Leasehold Plant and equipment Furniture and fixtures Computers Office equipment Electrical Total
Improvements * equipment

A. Gross carrying amount (at cost)
As at April 01, 2023 41.00 327.61 34.93 18.90 1.22 7.87 431.53
Additions 1.61 0.82 2.24 0.42 0.27 8.56 13.91
Deletions - (0.35) - - - (0.35)

As at March 31, 2024 42.61 328.08 37.17 19.31 1.49 16.42 445.09
Additions - 42.69 6.72 0.42 - - 49.84
Deletions - (16.13) - - - - (16.13)
As at March 31, 2025 42.61 354.65 43.89 19.74 1.49 16.42 478.80

B. Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 25.71 261.02 32.38 16.43 0.18 1.32 337.04
Fortheyearended 2.13 5.96 0.24 0.55 0.26 1.28 10.41
Deletions - (0.33) - - - - (0.33)

As at March 31, 2024 27.84 266.65 32.62 16.99 0.44 2.59 347.12
Fortheyearended 2.14 7.29 0.58 0.66 0.26 1.50 12.42
Deletions - (10.20) - - - - (10.20)

As at March 31, 2025 29.98 263.74 33.20 17.65 0.70 4.09 349.35

C. Net carrying amount (A-B)

As at March 31, 2025 12.63 90.91 10.69 2.09 0.79 12.33 129.45

As at March 31, 2024 14.77 61.43 4.55 2.33 1.05 13.83 97.97

* Leasehold improvements are the interiors/civil works carried Out by the Company at the diagnostic centre taken on lease.
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4 (b) Intangible assets
Particulars Amount
Software
A. Gross carrying amount (at cost)
As at April 01, 2023 0.88
Additions 5.13
Deletions -

As at March 31, 2024 6.01
Additions 0.75
Deletions -

As at March 31, 2025 6.76

B. Accumulated amortization
As at April 01, 2023 0.48
For the year ended 1.89
Deletions -

As at March 31, 2024 2.37
For the year ended 1.72
Deletions
As at March 31, 2025 4.09

C, Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2025 2.68
As at March 31, 2024 3.64

59



Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Investment in Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) At amortised cost[
Unquoted
Medisova Milleitniurn MRI Services LLP
[100% (March 31, 2023: 100%) share iii capital contribution]

Total
Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment itt value of investnsents

(b) Trade receivables
Current
Unsecured, Coitsidered good
Credit impaired
Less: Allosvancc for doubtful receivables (expected credit loss allowance)

* Includes amount receivable from related parties (refer note 27)

296.82 296.82

296.82 296.82

47.71 37.23
19.28 19.28

(19.28) (19.28)
47.71 37.23

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months 1 year years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 44.63 3.08 - - 47.71
considered good
(ii)Undispated Trade Receivables-

Which have significant increase in - - - - - -

credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables- - - 0.19 19.09 19.28

Credtt impaired
(lv) Disputed Trade receivables - - - -

considered good - - -

(v) Disputed Trade receivables
which have significant increase in - - - - - -

credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables- - - -

Credit impaired - - -

Total (A) 44.63 3.08 - 0.19 19.09 66.99
Expected credit loss rate - - - 100.00% 100.00%
LossAllowancc-B - - - 0.19 19.09 19.28
Carrying amount of trade
receivables (CA-B) 44.63 3.08 - - - 47.71

As at March 31, 2024
Outstanding for followt .g periods from die date of payment

Particulars Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
ntonths to 1 year years

(i) Uttdisputed Trade receivables- 35.09 1.46 0.68 - - 37.23
cottstdcred good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables-

which have sigisificant iticrease itt - - - - - -

credit risk
(iii) Utidisputed Trade receivables- - - 0.19 1.55 17.54 19.28

credit ttnpaired
(iv)Dioputed Trade - - - - - -

Receivables—considered good
(v)Disputed Trade Receivables

which have significittit increase in — — — — — —

credit risk
(vi)Disputed Trade Receivables- - - - - - -

credit impaired
Total (A) 35.09 1.46 0.87 1.55 17.54 56.51

Expected credit loss rate - - 21.84% 100.00% 100%
Loss Allowance- B - - 0.19 1.55 17.54 19.28
Carrying amount of trade
receivables (CA-B) 35.09 1.46 0.68 - - 37.23

5 Financial assets -

(a) Investments

Non-Current
A. Subsidiaries

296.82 296.82
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Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

5 Financial assets (continued)
(c) Other financial assets

Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits
Deposits having remaining maturity of more than 12 nsonths #

# Includes Fixed deposit ofRs. 11,35 takhs meld as Margin Mosey towards bask guarantee (March 31, 2024: Ro.9.35 laklms)

(d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances witlt banks
— in current accounts

(e) Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Current
Interest accrued on bank deposits
Security deposits

6 Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) net
Deferred tax assets

On account of property, plant and equipmettt
Ott account of expenses allowable on payment basis

Deferred tax asset?(liability), net

Movement in deferred tax assets? (liabilities)
Property, plant

Expensesand equipment allowable on TotalOn account of
and intangible

payment basisassets
At April 01, 2023 43.22 13.32 56.54
(Cltarged)? credited:
- to profit or loss (6.84) 0.84 (6.00)
- to OCT - (0.41) (0.41)

As at March 31, 2024 36.38 13.74 50.13
(Charged)/credited:
- to profit or loss (7.90) (2.52) (10.42)
- to OCT - 0.67 0.67
As at March 31, 2025 28.48 11.88 40.38

7 Inventories
(Valued at losrer ofcost and net realisable value,)
Chemicals, digital imaging films and consumables

8 Other assets
Current
GST Input Tax Credit
Prepaid expenses

11.63 10.22
11.63 10.22

- 0.11
3.35 5.91
3.35 6.03

15.92
14.30
30.22

15.92
9.35

25.27

2.26 1.56

85.82 59.64
88.08 61.20

0.91 0.49
0.27

0.91 0.76

28.49 36.39
11.88 13.74

40.38 50.13
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ii) Ternis and rights attached to equity shares
Equity shares issued by the Company have par value of Ru, 10 per share. Eaelt holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation
of the Company, the Itolders of equity shares will be eatitltd to receive remaining assets of tlte Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to tlte number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

iii) Details of shareholders holding more tItan 5% shares in the company
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Number of
% of total shares Number of shares /~ of total shares

shares

Equity Shares:
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Lituited (Holding Company) 6202,220 62.14% 62,02,220 62,14%

As per reeot’ds Itse Cottupatty iaeludittg registration of sltarelsolders/ ttsembers, the above share holding represents both legal and beneticial owitersitip of slsares.
Name of the Holdittg Company eltattged to Vijayn Diagnostic Centre Limited uvith effect from March 26, 2021 (formerly knowts as Vijaya Dtagnostie Centre
Private Limited).

1-Joldino Comnanv
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Equity Shares:
Vijaya Diagnostic Cetttre Limited 62,02,220 62,02,220

v) Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year
March 31, 202

Number of % change Nuitaber of
% of total shares

shares during the year shares

Equity Shares:
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Lintited (Holding 62,02,220 62.14% - 62,02,220
Company)

vi) Details of shares issued for consideration oilier than cash and bonus shares during Inst live years:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 3t March 2020

62. 14%

9

(a)

. Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equity

Equity share capital
Authorised share capital
1 1,000,000 (March31, 2023: 11,000,000) equity sltares of Ru. 10 each 1,100.00 1,100.00

Issued, oubocribed and fully paid up capital
9,981,640 (March 31, 2023: 9,981,640) equity shares ofRs. 10 each, fully paid-up 998.16 998.16
Less : Allotment Moitey Arrears 2.48 2,48

995.68 995.68

i) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Number of
Amount Number ot shares Amount

shares
Shares ostistandisig at Ilte begittning of the year 99,8 1,640 995.68 99,8 1,640 995.68
Shares issued durittg tlte year - - - -

Shares outstanding at the end of tlte year 99,81,640 995.68 99,81,640 995.68

Shares issued fur eossideratian other than east:
Busus shares
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(b) Other equity

i) General reserve

Balance at the commencement of the year
Add: Movensent during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

62.46 62.46

62.46 62.46

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer
from one consponent of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve wilt not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss.

ill Securities uremiulsi ________________________

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

51.55 51,55

51.55 51.55

Securities preiniuns is used to record the premium on issue of shares. It will be utilised in accordancc with the provisions of the “Act”.

iii) Retained earnings
Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the continencement of the year (1,31 6.29) (1,392.79)
Add: Profit for the year 88.94 75,27
Iw,ns ofoilier comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
- Rerneasurerncnt of defined benefit obligations (net of tax) (1.98) 1.22
Balance as at the end of the year (1,229.33) (1,316.29)

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to geneeal reserve, dividends or other distribsition to shareholders. OCI
represents remeasnrement of defined benefit plans: Difference between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually achieved, any changes is the
liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
subsequently not reclassified to statement of profil amid loss.

Total Other equity (i+ii+iit) (1,115.32) (1,202.28)

Reserves and Surplus

(i) General reserve
(ii) Securities prensiuns
(hi) Relained earnings

As at
March 31, 2025

62.46
51.55

(1,229.33)
(1,115.32)

As at
March 31, 2024

62.46
51.55

(1,316.29)
(1,202.28)

Balance at the eomammnencement of the year
Add: Movement during the year
Balance as at the end of the year
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Particulars
Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

10 Financial liabilities

(a) Non-Current borrowings
Unsecured
From related parties

- from Holding Company 500.00 500.00
500.00 500.00

Note:
i. Ternss of Unsecured loans front related parties:

(a) Loan from Holding Company is repayable in 3 years from the date of sanction, and the loan carries an tnterest rate of 10% per annum.

(b) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 23)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises *

* Includes amount payable to related parties (refer note 27)

As at March 31, 2025

(c) Other financial liabilities
Current
Payable to employees
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

11 Otlter liabilities
Current
Slslutoty liabilities

12 Provisions
Non-current

Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity (Refer note 26)
- Compensated absences

Current
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity (Refer note 26)
- Compensated absences

20.10
12.67

2.48
228.58

3.03
228.79

231.06 231.82

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars . Less than I More Than 3

Unbilled 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total
Year Years

i) MSME 2.17 0.31 - - - 2.48
ii) Otlsers 4.95 33.98 - 0.44 189.17 228.58
iii) Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - - -

iv) Disputed Dues-Others - - - - -

Total 7.12 34.29 - 0.44 189.17 231.06

As at March 31, 2024
Outsta’idtng fur following periods from due date of payment

Particulars . Less than I More Than 3
Unbilled 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Total

Year Years
i) MSME 2.85 0.18 - - . 3.03
ii) Others 4.64 31.72 - 0.81 191.63 228.79
iii) Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - -

iv) Disputed Dues-Others - - - - - -

Total 7.49 31.90 - 0.81 191.63 231.82

17.58

17.58 32.77

4.95 5.92
4.95 5.92

17,05 18.68
3.00 3.51

20.05 22.19

5.65 9.21
2.24 3.95
7.119 13.16

64



Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (continued)
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

13 Revenue from operations
Sale of services
Other operating revenue

Franchise Management Fee

14 Other income
Interest income on bank deposits
Rent received
Other non-operating income

15 Cost of materials consumed
Inventory of materials as at tise beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year
Less: Inventory of materials as at the end of the year

16 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 26)
Gratuity (refer note 26)
Compensated absences
Staff welfare expenses

17 Finance costs
Interest on borrowings from holding company measured at
amortised cost

18 Depreciation and amorttsation expenses
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

19 Other expenses
Power and fuel
Rent (refer note (ii) below)
Bank charges
Repairs and Maintenance

a. Plant and equipment
bOthers

Hosse keeping expenses
Security charges
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Advertisement, publicity and marketing
Travelling and Conveyance
Legal and professional charges
Payment to auditors (refer note (i) below)
Postage attd communication
Printing and stationery
Provision for doubtful receivables
Net loss ott sale/retirement of property, plant and equipment
Directors Sitting Fees
Miscellaneous expenses

Notes:

I. Payment to auditors (inclusive of taxes)
Statutory Auditor

- Statutory Audit Fee (including limited reviews)
- TaxAuditFee

3.05 3.05
0.68 0.68
3.73 3.73

ii. Rent itticudes expense on low value lease of Re. 3.66 lakhs(FY 2023-24, Rs. 3.36 lakhs) and on short term lease of Rs. 50.23 lakhs (FY 2023-24
Rs.46.6l lakha)

Particulars For the year ended For the year endedMarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

747.80 774.40

7.01 3.72
754.81 778.12

1.10 1.16
7.20 7.20
3.76 17.42

12,06 25.78

10.22 11.25
51.48 84.48
11.63 10.22
50.07 85.51

141.96 53,43
11.81 12.06
4.42 5.48
3.63 (0.43)
1.92 2.60

163.74 173.13

50.00 57.40

50.00 57.40

12.42 10.41
1.72 1.89

14.14 12.30

19.47 19.81
53.89 49,97
3.34 3.40

37.25 37.26
1.78 5.44

11.24 10.31
0.66 -

1.22 0.77
12.62 8.54
2.94 7.31

10.05 11.12
104.37 119.13

3.73 3.73
11.22 10.95

- 0.00
- 18.01

3.20 -

0.32 0.21
8.80 7.88

286.10 313.84
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Particulars For the year ended For the year endedMarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

20 Income-tax expense

(a) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss
Current tax
Earlier years tax
Deferred tax attributable to temporary differences
Tax expense

(b) Amount recognised in otlser comprehensive income

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCX
Deferred tax expense/(incorne) on remeasurements of defined benefit obligations

Income-tax expense/(income) recognised in OCI

(c) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate

Profit before tax
Enacted tax rate in India
Tax expense at enacted rates

Tax effect of:
Expenses disallowed for lax purpose
Allowances for tax purpose
Tax pertaining to earlier years
Income-tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Income-tax assets - Non Current
Current tax liabilities, net

As at
March 31, 2025

11.89
(1.23)
10.66

20.39
0.01
6.00

26.40

As at
March 31, 2024

11.89
(1.90)
9-99

Net current income-tax asset at the beginning of the year
Less: Csirrent income tax expense
Less: Tax pertaining to earlier years
Add: Tax paid / (refund received) during the year
Net income tax asset at the end of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

9.99 8.86
(19.66) (20.39)

(0.42) (0.01)
20.75 21.54
10.66 9.99

19.66
0.42

10.42
1049

(0.67) 0.41

(0.67) 0.41

119.43 101.67
25.17% 25.17%
30.06 25.59

17.73 14.90
(17.72) (14.10)

0.42 0.01
30.49 26.40

(d) The following table provides the details of income tax assets and inconle tax liabilities:
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21 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Contingent liabilities
Ttse Company has foltosviag Contingent liabilities as at

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

t.68 -

13.17 -

14.85 -

(i) Service Tax*
(ii) Goods and Service Tax° _____________________________________________
* Includes Rs. 1.96 lakhs (March 31 2024- Nil) paid raider protest ________________________________________________

The Company has established a liability with respect to contingencies for which loss is probable of estimalable. While the ultimate
resolution of and liability and cost relatable to these maIlers cannot be determined with certainty, the management does not believe any of
these pending actions, individually or in the aggregate, will niaterially impact operations or ninteriully affect financial condition or liquidity.

Capital and other conunitmento

Estimated aniouni of contracts remaining to be executed on capiial
account not provided for (net of advances)
Other comntiiinents

22 Earnings per share _____________________________________________

Earnings for the year
Net profit for the year aiidbutable to equity shareholders (A)

Shares
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (B)

Weighted average number of equity shares for Dilated EPS (C)

(a) Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each (A/B) _____________________________________________
(b) Diluted earnings per share of face value of Ro. 10 each (A/C) _____________________________________________

23 Dues to micro and small enterprises
The details of Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006.

24 Disclosure as per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of usc Coistpataies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 ore as follows

(i) Details of ittvestments made are given in Note 5(a)
(ii) Loans given by the Company is Nil (as at March 31, 2024: Nil)
(iii) Guarantees given by the Company is Nil (as at March 31, 2024: Nil)
25 Segment reporting

A. Basis for segmentation
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in bnsiuess activities from which it may earn reveaues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that ‘elate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for svlsich discrete
financial information is available. All operating segments results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chairman and MD to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segtnntits and assess tlteir performance.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM”) evaluates Ihe Cotnpany’s performance atad allocates resources based on an attalysis of
various performance indicators at operational unit level and since tlsere is single operating segmeilt, Ito segment disclosures of the compaisy
is presented. The Company’s operations full withitt a single business segment ‘Diagnostic services”,

B. Geographical information
The Contpany opemtcs within India and therefore there are ito assets or liabilities outside Itidia.

C. Major customers
Revetane Haiti any sitigle castomcr of the Cotaapatiy~s operating segment does not exceed 10% of the total revenue reported attd Itcitce the
there are no major customers to be disclosed.

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

88.94 75.27

99,81,640 99,81,640

99,81,640 99,81,640

0.89 0,75
0.89 0.75

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
(a) the principal amnnnl and tIre interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at
the end of each accounting year;
- Principal 2.48 3.03
- Interest - -

(b) the amonnt of interest paid by the buyer in teriiis of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, - -

alotig with the amonni of the pnyrnetal nude to the snpplier beyond the appoittied day
daring each accounting yeas’;
(e) hlte amount of interest due aitd payable for the period of delay in ntnking payittent - -

(which htavo been paid but beyond the appointed day daring the year) but without adding
the interesh specified under this MSMED Ad;
(d) the amount of interest accrued atid remaining unpaid at the end of the each - -

(e) the antoant of further interest remaining due and payable oven in the succeeding - -

yearn, until such dale when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the stnall
enlerprise, for the pnrpose of disnllowance of a deductible expetiditure nuder Seetioti 23
of the MSMED Act.

Note: The list of undertakings covered under MSMED Act was detertnined by the Cotarpany alt ihe busts of infonnation available with the
Company and hans been i’ehied apsis by the auditors.
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26 Employee benefit plans
The Company has following post employment benefit plans:

(a) Defined contribution plans
Contributions were made to provident fund (at the rate of t2% of basic salary) and Employee State Insurance in India for the employees of the
Company as per the regulations. These contributions are made to registered funds administered by the Government of lndta. The obligation of the
Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any other constructive obligation. The expense recognised
during the year in the standalone statement of profit and loss towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 11.81 lakhs (March 3 1, 2024: Rs. 12.06
lakhs).

(b) Defined benefit plan
The Company provides for Gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for
a period of 5 years are eligible for Gratuity. The amount of Gratuity payable on retirement! termination is the employee’s last drawn basic salary
per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary irntltiplied for the number of years of service or part thereof in excess of six months,
restricted to a sum of Rs. 20.00 lakhs. The gratuity plan is an unfunded plan.

This defined benefit plans expose the Company so actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.

i. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)! liability
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets over the year are as
follows:

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the defined benefit obligation as per the valuation report as at March
31, 2025 are produced in the tables below

(a~ Changes in the Present Value of Obligation
Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Present value of obligation as at the beginning 27.88 40.65
Current service cost 2.43 2.50
lttterest expense or cost 1.99 2.97
Actuarial (gains) / losses
- change in demographic assumptions (0.27) -

- change its financial assumptions 0.57 0.14
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) 2.36 (1.77)
Benefits paid (12.25) (16.62)
Present value of obligation as at end 22.70 27.88

(b) Bifurcation of Present Value of obligation at tlse end of the year as per revised Schedule 1T of the Companies Act~ 2013
Particulars As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cunent liability (Short-term) 5.65 9.21
Non-current liability (Long-term) 17.05 18.68
Present value of obligation 22.70 27.88

(c) Expenses Recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Particulars Year ended

Marcls 31, 2025 Marchs 31, 2024

Current service cost 2.43 2.50
Net interest cost! (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) 1.99 2.97
‘Ixpenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 4.42 5.48

(d) Other Comprehensive liscome
Particulars Year ended

March 31, 2025 Marcls 31, 2024

Actuarial (gains) / losses
- change in demographic assumptioiss (0.27) -

- change in financial assumptions 0.57 0.14
- experietsce variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) 2.36 (1.77)
Components of defined beisefit costs recognisedin other coinprelsensive income 2.65 (1.63)
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26 Employee benefit plans (continued)

(b) Defined benefit plan (continued)

ii. Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions for defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Attrition rate

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
6.50% 7.15%
6.00% 6.00%

15.00% 15.00%

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the
eslimated term of the obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors.

Attrition rate: Represents the Company’s best estimate of employee turnover in future (other than on account of retirement, death or disablement)
determined considering various factors such as nature of business, retention policy, industry factors, past experience, etc.

iii. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation and current service coat by the amounts shown below:

Increase in assumption by 1% Decrease in assumption by 1%
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Discount rate -3.6% -3.2% 3.9% 3.4%
Salary escalation rate 3.9% 3.4% -3.7% -3.3%
Attrition rate -0.4% -0.6% 0.9% 0.1%

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the
above aensitivily analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

iv, Maturity profile of the defined benefit liability
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 4 years (March 31, 2024 - 3 years). The expected maturity analysis of defined
benefit obligation on an undiscounted basis is as follows:

Less than a year Between 2-5 Between 6-10 years More than 10 years
years

31 March 2025 5.65 15.08 5.20 4.13
31 March2024 19.169.21 4.38 3.68
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27 Related party disclosures
(a) Details of related parties

Description of relationship
Holding Company

Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiaries

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Close member of KMP

Enterprise where KMP has significance influence

Independent Directors

Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited
Diagnostic Services-Expense
Branding Income
Interest on Loan
Loan Repaid

S.Geetha Reddy
Rent Paid

Kamalaka Rao Ponnapalli
Independent directors sitting fcc/commision

Ravi Kumar Reddy Kanamatareddy
Independent directors sitting fee/commision

Name of the related parties
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited
(formerly knowti as Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Private Limited)

Medinova Millennium MRI Services LLP
P H Diagnostic Centre Private Limited
VDC Diagnostics (Kamataks) LLP
Doctors Lab Medical Services Private Limited (Striked off by ROC w.e.f. 06
April 24)

Narnrata Diagnostic Centre Private Limited (struck off w.e.f. 06 April 2024)

Dr. Sura Surendrasath Reddy, Chairman
Sunil Chandra Kondapally, Managing Director
Nikhil Rajrnal Jam. Chief Financial Officer ( we.f. Januray 31, 2024 upto

November 30, 2024)

Satish Bollineni, Chief Financial Officer (sv.e.f. January 30, 2025)
Hanaraj Singh Rajput, Company Secretary

S.Geeths Reddy (Wife of Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy, Chairman)

Kahetra Agritech Private Limited
Summit Nutracueticals Private Limited
Trikona Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Vijaya Hospitals Pvt. Ltd.
S Square Properties LLP
Trikona Holdings LLP
Vijaya Holdings India LLP
Anus Living LLP
Banns Resorts Private Limited

Kamalaka Rao Ponnapalli (w,e.f November 10th 2014)
Ravindra Reddy Venga Reddy Kutagulla (Up to March 31st 2024)
Ravi Kumar Reddv Kanamatareddv (w.e.f. June21. 20241

(b) Details of transactions during the year
For the Year ended For the Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sale of Fixed Assets
Rent Paid
Reimbursment of expenses

Medinova Millennium MRI Services LLP
Diagnostic Services-Expense
Rent received

64.01
4.25

50.00

3.39
46.73

8.03

8.96
8.50

44.16

57,40
75.00

43.54

10.20
8.50

4.69 4.36

0.15 0.11

0.12 0.11
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(c) Amounts due (to)! from related parties
Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured Loan
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited 500.00 500.00

Interest payable
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited - 12.67

Trade payable

Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited 10.11 -

Rent Payable
S.Geetha Reddy 0.37 0.33

Rental denosits
S.Geetha Reddy 1.85 1.85

Creditors for services
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited 188.90 195.97
Medinova Millennium MRI Services LLP 8.07 0.66

Investments
Medinova Millennium MRI Services LLP 296.82 296.82

Note:
All transactions with these related parties are at arms length basis and resulting outstanding receivables and payables including financial
assets and financial liabilities balances are settled in cash. None of the balances are secured. (All the amounts of transactions and balances
disclosed in this note are gross and undiscounted).
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28 ~tpital management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on equity so as to provide returns to shareholders, benefits to other stakeholders, creditors
mid to sust~iin future development and growth of the bsisiisess. In order to maititain the capital structure, she Company monitors the return on capital as well as debt to total
eqaity ratis. The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returss to all its shareholders. For
the purpose of debt to total equity, debt includes its long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprises of issued share capital and all other equity reserves, Since the
total equity is negative, Gearing ratio is not given.

29 Fisancial instruments

A. Accounting classilications and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars Note . Fair value level

Amortised cost Fair value Amortised cost Fair value
Fisancial assets
Investments 5 (a) 296,82 - 296.82 - Level 3
Tnde receivables 5 (b) 47.71 - 37,23 - Level 3
Security deposits 5 (c) 15.92 - 15.92 - Level 3
Bank deposits 5 (c) 14.30 9.35 Level 3
Cash and cash equivalents 5 (d) 88.08 - 61.20 - Level 3
Other financial assets 5 (e) 0.91 - 0.76 - Level 3

Tetal financial assets 463.74 - 421.28 -

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10 (a) 500.00 - 500.00 - Level 3
Trade payable tO (b) 231.06 - 231.82 - Level 3
Oilier financial liabilities 10 (c) 17.58 - 32.77 - Level 3

Total financial liabilities 748.64 - 764.59 -

Mete: The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as short-term trade receivables or short-term trade payables because their carlying amounts
area reasonable approximation of fair values.

Note 1: For the purpose of above abbreviations, FVTOCI - Fair value tlu’ough other comprehensive income; arnortised cost - fair value through amortized cost

Note 2: Other financial assets and liabilities relate to level 3 financial ins’tniments whece the carrying value reasonably approxinnates to their fair value.
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29 Financial instruments (continued)

B, Financial risk management

The Company activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk whirls the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Trade receivables, security Ageing analysis. Credit score of cuslomers/ entities. Monitoring tlse credit limits of customers and obtaining security deposits

deposits, bask deposits and
loans.

Liquidity risk Borrowings Cash flow forecasts managed by finance team under the overview of Working capital management by Senior Management. The excess liquidity is
Senior Management. channelised through bank deposits and investment in mutual funds.

The Company’s risk management is carried out by the Senior Management under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors provides guiding principles for overall risk management, as
well as policies coveting specific areas such as credit risk and liquidity risk.

i. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss so the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial inslrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from
customers and loans.

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

Trade receivables and loans:

Customer credit risk is managed by the respective department subject to Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
based on individual credit limits as defined by the Company. Outstaisding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

Expected credit loss (ECL) assessment for individual customers:

As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivable using a provision matrix to mitigate ilse risk of default payment and make appropriate provision at each
reporting date.
The ageing analysis of the receivables has been considered from the date she invoice falls due.

< 365 days > 365 days Provision Total

March 31, 2025 47.71 19.28 (19.28) 47.71
March3l,2024 36.55 19.96 (19.28) 37.23

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more titan 365 days (P.Y. 730 days) are still collectible in full, based ois lustorical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer
credit risk.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Allowance measured at lifetime expected credit loss
Less: Amounts wrirten off
Balance at the end of the year

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

19.28 1.27
- 18.01

19.28 19.28

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks is geserally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks who have been assigned high credit rating by credit rating agescies. Investments
primarily include investments in subsidiaries.
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29 Financial instruments (continued)

ii. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far at possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The finance team monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash outflows on trade payables and other financial liabilities and any excess?
thort liquidity it managed in the form of current borrowings and bank deposits as per the approved frame work.

Exposure to liability risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amouists are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of
netting agreements.

March 31, 2025 Carrying Total Contractual cash flows
Less than 1 year t-2 years 2—5 years More than S

years

Borrowings 500.00 500.00 500.00 - - -

Tradepayables 231.06 23t.06 231.06 - - -

Other financial liabilities 1 7.58 17.58 17.58 - - -

748.64 748.63 748.64 - - -

March 31, 2024 Carrying Total Contractual cash flows
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5

years

Borrowings 500.00 500.00 500.00 - -

Tradepayables 231.82 231.82 231.82 - - -

Other financial liabilities 32.77 32.77 32.77 - - -

764.59 764.59 764.59 0.00 - -

Except for these financial liabilities, it is not expected that cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts.

iii. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that results from changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange mtes, interest rates and others which will affect the Company’s income. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. svhile optimizing the return.
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30 Disclosure as per md AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contract assets
- Unbilled - -

- Trade receivables 47.71 37.23

Contract liabilities
- Advances from customers - -

- Contract liability- deferred revenue - -

Reconciliation of revenue from contract with customers
Asat Asat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from contract with csstsnler 742.72 761.71

Adjustments made to contract price os
Discount IRebates 5.08 t2.69

Revenue frsus contract with customer 747.80 774.40

Other operating revenue 7.01 3.72

Revenue from operations 754.81 778.12

31 Code on Social Security, 2020:

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security. 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has
released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholdern which are under active consideration by the Ministry. l’he Company will assess the

impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the
financial impact are published.
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32 Ratios

a) Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 20241
Curreist Assets 151.68 It
Current Liabilities 262.71 285,57
Ratio 0.58 0.40
% Change from previous year 43%

Reason for change more than 25%:
This ratio Itas increased from 0.40 in March 2024 to 0.58 in March 2025 mainly due to increase in Trade receivables and cssis and cash
equivalents and decrease in otlser financial liabilities on account of rcpsynsent of interest on boriowings.

b) Debt Equity ratio Total debt divided by Total equity

Since tlse total equity is segative, ratio is not given

ct Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for debt services divided hs Tatal interest and
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit after tax 88.94 75.27
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost 64.14 69.70
-Depreciation and amortizations 14.14 12.30
-Finance cost 50.00 57.40
Earnings available for debt services 153.08 144.97
Interest cost ott borrowings 50.00 57.40
Instaintents - 75.00
Total Interest and instalments 50.00 132.40
Ratio 3.06 1.09
% Change front previous year 180%

Reasons for change more than 25%:

This ratio has increased from 1.09 in March 2024 to 3.06 in March 2025 mainly due to increase in Profit after tax sad there is no
repsynsent of borrowing during tlse year.

d) Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Equity

Since the total equity is negative, this ratio is not glvett

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold divided by closieg inventory
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Coat of Goods sold 50 86
Ctositsg lttventory 12 10
Inventory Turnover Ratio 4 8
% Change from previous year -49%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Tltis ratio has Decreased frontS itt March 2023 to 4 in Marclt 2024 mainly due to Decrease in Cost of goods sold and increase in closing
inventory

ft Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by CIt ~ing trade receivables

Particulars March 31, 202~ March 31, 2024
Credit Sales 129,87 129,87
Closing Trade Receivables 47.71 37.23
Ratio 2.72 3.49
% Change fruits previous year

g) Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by closing trade payables
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Credit Pstrcltases 337,58 398.32
Closing Trade Payables 231.06 231.82
Ratio 1.46 1.72
‘V0 Change from previous year —IS/n I
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h) Net capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Working capital whereas working capital current assets - current liabilities

As the working capital is negative, this ratio is not given

it Net nroflt ratio = Net orofit after tax divided by Sales
Particulars March 31, 2025 March31, 2024
Net profit ofier tax 88.94 75.27
Sales 754.81 778.12
Ratio 1 1.78% 9.67%
% Change from previous year 22%

) Return on Capital employed
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before interest and tax 169.43 159.07
Capital Employed: 400.41 315.59
Total Assets 663.12 601.16
Less: Current Liabilities (262.7 it (285.571
Ratio 0.42 0.50
% Change front previous year ~1600

Note: Return on investment ratio is not applicable to the company

33 Other statutory infarniatian
i. The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or peadiag against the Company for holding any Benami

property.

n. The Company does not have any transactions wills companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or sectioa 560 of Companies Act,
1956 during the financial year.

iii. Tue Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currettcy or Virtual Currency during use financial year.
iv. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet lobe registered sviils Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the Statsiory period.

v. Tue Company has sot advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entiiy(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
undersiautding that the Interitsediary stash:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or iitvest in other persons or entities identified in any maimer whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
vi. The Conapany has not received any fund front aity person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) wills the underntaiading (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in otlter persons or eittities identified in atty manner whatsoever by or ott behalf of the Fundntg Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, secsirity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
vu. The Cosmpaay has not entered into aity transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surreisdered or disclosed as income

during tIme year in the tax assessments under the Income Tos Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any oilier relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act.
1961).

viii. The Company has not been declared at wilful defaulter by say bank or finsacial institution or other lender.

34 Scheme of Amalgamation
The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 26 June 2024, have considered and approved the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation
(‘Scheme”) of the company (“Transferor Company”) with atad into the Holding Compatsy, “Vijays Diagnostic Cetatre Ltnailed” (Transferee Company)
wills effect from 01 April 2024 (‘the Appointed Date”) under Sections 23010232 aud other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, sttd other
rules and regulations framed thereunder (“Scheme”). The Company has received letter with “so adverse observntmotts” froita the BSE Limited aitd SEBI
on December 05, 2024, and further vide National Cosapany Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Hyderabud, order dated March 5, 2025 (“Order”), the conapanny hat
obtained approval of shareholdern vide resolution passed at their meeting held on April 25,2025, and pursuant to the said order the NCLT has also
dispensed the mneeiing of Unsecured Creditors and Unsecured Loan Creditor as they have coitveyed their consent in writing for the Sctteme of
Aiaalgamation. The Scheme is subject to the approval of thin NCLT, and such other approvals, permissions, and sanctions of regulatory and oilier
authorities as may be necessary.

For M. Anandam & Co. For attd on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accouittantn Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
1CM Finn registratious number: 0001 25S CIN:L85 II OTG I 993PLC0 1

~~irans
Partner Chairman
Membership Number: 266427 DIN 00108599

f-il
Place Hydeisbad S is Bol
Date: 03 May, 2025 Chic manna 0 iccr

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03 May, 2025
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M. ANANDAM & CO.,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its wholly owned subsidiary Medinova
Millennium MRI Services LIP (the Holding Company and its wholly owned subsidiary together
referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2025,
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”), in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, of
its consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and
its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI”) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 34 of the financial statements which states that subsequent to the
balance sheet date, the Company received shareholders’ approval on April 25, 2025 for the Scheme
of Amalgamation with its Holding Company, Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited, effective from April 1,
2024. The Scheme of Amalgamation is pending approval from the National Company Law Tribunal,
Hyderabad.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

7 ‘A’, SURYA TOWERS, SARDAR PAUL ROAD,
PHONE: 2781 2377, 2781 2034, FAX: 2781 2091
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M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than Financial Statements (Other Information)

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude we conclude that that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. The respective management of the entities included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management of the entities
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective management either intend to liquidate their
respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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79



M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

The respective management of the entities included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to the preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of
the directors of the Holding Company is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 1(b) above and paragraph 1(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

(h) The Holding Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year. Hence the
provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements (Refer Note 21 of the standalone financial statements).

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Group.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that (Refer Note 33(v) of the Standalone financial
statements), to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The Management has represented, that (Refer Note 33(vi) of the Standalone financial
statements), to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (I) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under
(a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, hence, the
provisions of section 123 of the I applicable.
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instances mentioned
below, the Group has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective softwares:

The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database
level to log any direct data changes for the accounting software used for maintaining the
books of account relating to general ledger and customer billing.

The Group uses accounting software operated by a third-party service provider to
maintain its books of account relating to payroll. In the absence of sufficient and
appropriate reporting on compliance with audit trail requirements in the independent
auditor’s report of the third-party service provider for the period from 01-04-2024 to 31-
12-2024, and in the absence of an independent auditor’s report for the period from 01-
01-2025 to 31-03-2025, we are unable to comment on whether the audit trail feature
was enabled and operational throughout the financial year under audit for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software, or whether there were any instances of
tampering with the audit trail feature.

Further, where audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated throughout the year
for respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail in respect of the previous year has been preserved by the Group
as per the statutory requirements for record retention except for the instances mentioned
below:

• In case of the accounting software used for maintaining general ledger and customer
billing, the audit trail is not preserved for the database level.

• In case of an accounting software used for maintaining payroll records, we are unable to
comment whether the audit trail has been preserved by the Company.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”! “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company we report
that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in this CARO report. Reporting under this clause
is not applicable to the subsidiary.

For M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.

V. Abhiram
Partner
Membership No. 21

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03rd May, 2025
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(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to the consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to the consolidated financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to the consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

For M. Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 000:

A7
M. V. Abhiram
Partner
Membership No.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 03rd May, 2025
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Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share dats or as otherwise stated)

ASSETS
I Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Intangible assets
(c) Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets
(dl Deferred tax assets, (net)
(e) Non-current tax assets, (net)

Total non-current assets

II Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Other financial assets

(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other current assets
Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS (I + 11)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I Equity

(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Equity attributable to owners of Parent Company
Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Liabilities
II Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings

(b) Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

III Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

(ii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current tax liabilities (net)
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities (II + III)
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (1 + II + III)

5(a)
5 (b)
5(d)
5(c)

20(d)
8

10(t)
12

10(b)

10(c)
11
12

20(d)

Corporate information

Basis of preparation and measurement and material accounting policies 2&3

The notes referred to above foim an integral part of the consolidated tinancisl statements.

As per our Report of even date attached
ForM. Anandam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 0001 25S

V. Abbiram
Partiser
Membership Number: 266427

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 03 -05-2025

Asat Asat
Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

4(a) 191.06 159.92
4(b) 2.68 3.64

5 (c) 30.22 55.27
6 35.97 47.36

20(d) 11.89 11.89
271.82 278.08

9 (a)
9 (b)

14.98 13.58

151.25 -

54.57 42.58
190.69 191.49

4.90 3.25
- 2.71

4.76 6.36
421.15 259.97
692.97 538.05

995.68 995.68
(1,120.47) (1,308.14)

(124.79) (312.46)

(124.79) (312.46)

500.00 500.00
20.05 22.19

520.05 522.19

3.31 3.70
225.16 233.45

19.02 34.26
5.42 6.67

43.07 48.34
1.73 1.90

297.71 328.32
817.76 850.51
692.97 538.05

Chairman
DIN: 00108599

I

~lineni
Chief Financial Officer

onda
Managing Director
DIN: 01409332

~.
Hans - ingh jpu
Company cretsry

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 03 -05-2025
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Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

1 Income
(a) Revenue from operations
(b) Other income

2 Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed
(b) Employee benefits expense
(c) Testing Fees
(d) Finance costs
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expenses
(I) Other expenses
Total expenses

3 Profit before tax ~1 - 2J

4 Tax expense
(a) Current tax
(b) Earlier years tax
(c) Deferred tax
Total tax expense

5 Profit for the year [3-41

6 Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligations
(b) Income-tax relating to above item
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)

7 Total comprehensive income for the year [5+6J

Profit for the year attributable to Owners
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to Owners
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to Non-controlling
interests

Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up)
- Basic (in Rs.)
— Diluted (in Re.)

Corporate information
Basis of preparation and measurement and material accounting policies 2&3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our Report of even date attached
ForM. Anandam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
1CM Firm registration nu

- s~
M. V. Abhiram ~ Secunderabad P
Partner * *
Membership Number:

~‘edAcco~/’

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 03-05-202 5

Total income

Year ended Year ended
Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

981.29
14.56

1,016.52
19.82

1,036.34995.85

64.32 100.29
182.60 190.19
74.44 49.86
50.00 57.40
14.47 12.73

360.36 397.98
746.19 808.45

249.66 227.89

47.55 20.39
0.42 0.01

12.02 7.60
59.99 28.01

189.67 199.89

(2.64) 1.63
0.67 (0.41)

(1.98) 1.22

187.69 201.11

13
14

15
16

17
18
19

20

20

22

189.67 199.89

187.69 201.11

1.89 2.00
1.89 2.00

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited

0TG1993PLC01548 1

nil Chandra Kon. pally
Managin: ector
DIN:0l409 2

Hansra Singh Rajput
Company Secretary

neni
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 03-05-2025
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54edinova Diagnostic Services Limited
onsoidated Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

All amounts ut Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustnienis.for:

Depreciation and smortisation expenses
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest income
Provision for credit impaired receivables
Finance costs
Fair value gain on investments measured at FVTPL
Liabilities no longer required written back

Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities
Changes itt working capital items:

(Increase)? Decrease in inventories
(Incrensn)/ Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)? Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)? Decrease in oilier current assets
(Increase)? Decrease in tax assets
Increase! (Decrease) in trade puyablns
Decreuse in provisions and other liabilities
Incrense in other current liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Inveslment made in liquid mittual fltnds
Interest received
Net cash outflow from investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowing? (Repayment) of Loan from Holding Company
Interest paid
Net cash (outflow)/iofloW from financing activities

Net increase?(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash eqoivalents at end of the year

For M. Anandam & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountatsts Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
ICAI Firm registration :L85110TO1993PLC015481

EdeEbad~
Partner C)

~t
Membership N t~r.

12.73
(0.09)
(3.49)
18,00
57.40

(4.48)

307.96

Year ended
NA......klI ~n’5C

Year ended
11, 2024

249.66 227.89

14.47
3.20

(9.44)

50.00
(1.25)

306.64

(1.40)
(11.99)
25.32

1.60
(11.26)

(8.68)
(10.20)

(3.82)
286.21
(34.00)

(1.36)
9.70

(0.09)
1.90

(11.57)
(6.87)

(15.82)
(7.06)

276.80

266.55252.21

(50.59) (21.47)
2.73 0.11

(150.00) -

7.52 0.83
(190.34) (20.53)

- (75.00)

(62.67) (57.49)
(62.67) (132.49)

(0.80) 113.53
191.49 77.96

190.69 191.49

Nate:
(a) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (lad AS-7) -

Statement of Cash Flows

(b) Cash and cash equivalents mentioned above comprise the following:
Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash on hand 2.28 2.56
Balances with banks

- in current accounts 100.68 88.93
- in deposits Itave maturity period of less than 3 months 87.73 100.00

Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5(c)) 190.69 198.49

(c) Net Debt Reconciliation
Asat Aaat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance of borrowings 500.00 575.00
Add:- Proceeds from borrowings during the year - -

Less:- Repayment of borrowings during the year (75.00)
Fair Value Adjustment - -

Closing balance of borrowings 500.00 500.00

The notes referred to above forna an integral part of the consolidated financial statemettts.

As per our report of even date attached

• Sorendranath Reddy
Chairman
DIN: 00108599

Chief Finaticial Officer

nil Chandra Kondapally
,inagatg Director

DIN:01409 32

~aPut

Company Secrets

Place: Hydembad
Date 03-05-2025
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Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 03-05-2025

Reserves and surplus Total attributable to Total attributable to Total

Particulars General Securities premium Retained earnings owners of the Non- controlling
reserve Company interest

Balance as at April 01, 2023 62.46 51.55 (1,623.27) (1,509.25) - (1,509.25)
Profitl(Loss) for the year - 199.89 199.89 - 199.89
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - 1.22 1.22 - 1.22
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 201.11 201.11 - 201.11
Balance at March 31, 2024 62.46 51.55 (1,422.16) (1,308.14) - (1,308.14)
Profitl(1..oss) for the year - - 189.67 189.67 - 189.67
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - (1.98) (1.98) - (1.98)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 187.69 187.69 - 187.69
Balance at March 31, 2025 62.46 51.55 (1,234.45) (1,120.47) - (1,120.47)

For M. Anandam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration ~4

©
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
CIN:L85 1 10TG1993PLC015481

Surendranath Reddy
Chairman
DIN: 00108599

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date : 03-05-2025
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Corporate Information
Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited (the Company” or “the Parent Company) together with its subsidiary (collectively, “the
Group”) is a Public limited Company domiciled in India and was incorporated on March, 11, 1993 under the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at # 7-1-58, Unit No. 1/Flat No. 301,
3rd Floor, Amrutha Business Complex, Ameerpet, Hyderabad - 500 016, Telangana, India. The Company is a subsidiary of
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited.

The Group is engaged in the business of providing comprehensive range of diagnostic services spanning pathological
investigations, radiology & imaging, conventional, specialized lab services and diagnostic cardiology.
The Company got listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

2 Basis of preparation and measurement

(i) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements (hereinafter referred to as ‘consolidated financial statements’) have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (md AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act under the historical cost
convention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments, equity settled share based payments, which are measured
at fair values, notified under the Act and Rules prescribed thereunder.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires change in accounting policy hitherto in use.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 03-May-2025

(ii) Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupces (INR), which is also the Group’s functional currency.
All financial infonnation presented in Indian rupees have been rounded-off to two decimal places to the nearest lakh except
share data or as otherwise stated.

(iii) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities : Measured at fair value
- Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability : Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations
- Borrowings Amortised cost using effective interest rate method

(iv) Use of estimates and judgements
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, Management has made judgemeiits, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 6- Deferred tax assets: whether the Company has convincing evidence to recognise deferred tax assets

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment
within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

- Note 4 (a) — determining an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life;

- Note 5 (b) — Impairment of financial assets;

- Note 25— measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

— Notes 12— recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude
of an outflow of resources;
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2 Basis of preparation and measurement (continued)

(v) Measurement of fair values
Accounting polices and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and non-financial assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair values arc eategorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
eategorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the following notes:
- Note 28 - Financial instruments

(Vi) Principles of consolidation

a. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group conu’ols
an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

(i) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
(ii) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
its returns.
(iii) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:
(i) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
(ii) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
(iii) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights;
(iv) The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders.
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The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control, Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Asseta, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year arc
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in
preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Parent
Company, i.e. year ended on March 31.

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

b. Consolidation procedures:
a. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this
purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated
financial statements at the acquisition date.

b. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.
Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

c. Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the
consolidated financial statements. tnd AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profit and
losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

c. Non-controlling interests (NCI)
NCI is measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

d. Loss of control
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
(i) Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary.
(ii) Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests,
(iii) Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity.
(iv) Recognises the fair value of the consideration received.
(v) Recognises the fair value of any investment retained.
(vi) Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
(vii) Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OCT to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

e. Subsidiaries considered in the consolidated financial statements: ________________________________________

Ownership interest in %

S.No. Name of the entity Relationship Country of March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
incorporation

1 Medinova Millennium MM Wholly Owned India 100.00% 100.00%
Services LLP subsidiary

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(vii) Current and non-current classification:
The Schedule III to the Act requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either current or non-current. The Group presents assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current classification.

Assets
An asset is classified as a current when it is:
- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal operating cycle;
- it is expected to be realized within twelve months from the reporting date;
- it is held primarily for the purposes of being traded; or
- is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date.
All other assets are classified as non current
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Liabilities
A liability is classified as a current when:
- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group’s normal operating cycle;
- it is due to be settled within twelve months from the reporting date;
- it is held primarily for the purposes of being traded:
- Deferred tax assets/liabilities arc classified as non-current.
- the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of liability for at least twelve months from the reporting date.
All other liabilities are classified as non-culTent.

Operating Cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and reslisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

3 Summary of material accounting policies

A. Revenue recognition

I) Income from diagnostic services
Revenue from diagnostics services is recognized on amount billed net of discounts! concessions if any. No element of financing is deemed
present as the sales are made primarily on cash and carry basis, however for institutional! organisational customers a credit period of 30
days is given, which is consistent with market practice.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the customer.
Ifs customer pays consideration before the Company transfer services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment
is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

The Group recogniaea revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when the underlying tests are conducted, samples are processed for requisitioned diagnostic tests. Each service is generally
a separate performance obligation and therefore revenue is recognised at a point in time when the teats are conducted, samples are
processed. For multiple tests, the Group measures the revenue in respect of each performance obligation at its relative stand alone selling
price and the transaction price is allocated accordingly. The price that is regularly charged for a teat separately registered is considered to be
the best evidence of its stand alone selling price. Revenue contracts are on principal to principal basis and the Group is primarily
responsible for fulfilling the performance obligation.

B. Recognition of interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

C. Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred ito connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributabte to
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitatised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

B. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a Financial Asset of one entity and Financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

I,) linda! ,,,easurement and recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and toss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

iO classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition nr issue.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, finatseisl assets are categoriscd as utsder:
- Ansortised cost;
- Fair Value through Otiter Cotnprehensive Income (FVOCt) — equity ittvestment; or
- Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets arc not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business tnodel for
managing financial assets.

A finatocial asset is measured at atnoi’tiscd cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
— Cite asset is held withiti a busttsess model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual easlt flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ott the
principal antount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an eqttily inveoltnenl that is not held for trading, tlte Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
inveslmetot’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity inveottnettt). This election is tnade on an investment-by-investment basis.

All fitsancial assets not classified as nscasarcd at ansortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, tite Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets tlte requiretnents
to be measured at antortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting tuismatelt that wuald
otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently nteasured at fair value. Net gains and losses, inclttding any interest or dtvtdend
incotne, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost These assets are subsequently measured at atnortised cost using the effective interest method. TIte
amortiscd coot is reduced by impairmetst losses, Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and itnpait’ment are recognised to profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Eqttity investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measotred at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised to OCI and are
not reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:
Financial liabilities are classified as meastired at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL tf it is classified as
held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as sttch on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are tsseasured at fair value
and not gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabtlities are
subseqotently measured at amortised coot using the effective interest method, Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recogtsised in statetnettt of profit or loss.

Derecesgnilion - Financial assets
A Fittancial ttssel is prittoarily derecognised wlten the rigltt to receive tlse contractotal caah flows its a transaction in wlttelt substantially all of Cite
risks attd rewards of ownership of ttte fittatocial asset are transferred or in which the Group scitlter transfers nor retains substantially all of tim
risks and rewards of swttcrship sod does sot rctaiit control of the fitiaoeial asset,

If Site Group enters itito lransactiotss whereby it transfers assets recogtsiscd on its balance slseet, but rctaitss elllser all or substantially oil of tlte
risks ttttd reovards of tite Iransferred assets, die transferred assets are ttst derecogoised.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition - Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are nsodified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially
different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and ttte nesv finaaciat liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Instruments Offsetting
Finttncial annetn and financial liabilities are offset and the net amouiit reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently and legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and is intends either to settle them ott a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

E. Property, plant and equipment

() Recognition and measurement
Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairmetit loss, if any. Cast of an item of properly, plant and equipment consprtses its purchase price,
iticludiitg import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
britsging the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cools of dismantling and removitsg the item aitd restoring the site
on svhich it is located. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequemmt costs are included in the asset’s carrying ansount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future econonsic benefits associated with the item will flow to tite Grostp amid tIme cost of the item can be measured reliably. The camsytng
amount of any component accotinted for as a ueparate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. If an item of property, plant and equipment is purchased with
deferred credit period from supplier, such annet is recorded at its cash price equivalent value.

ii,) Depreciation

Depreciation is provided asitsg the Written down value Method (‘WDV’) upto 31st December 2022, over the useful liven of site assets as
estimated by time Maitagement Depreciation on additiotis and deletions arc restricted to the period of misc. Assets costing below Rs, 5,000 arc
depreciated its full its the saiste year.

With effect frstn 1st January 2023, use Group has ctsangcd its nsetlsod of depreciation on all Property, Plant and Eqaipinent from Written
Dosvts Value (“WDV”) method to Straight Line Metisod (“SLM”), based upon tlse technical assessissent of expected pattern of cotisuissption of
the future econotnic benefits ensbodied in the assets.

The Group entities, based on technical assessment atsd managemetat estimate, depreciates certain items of property, plant and equipment aver
estimated useful lives whicls are different from the usetlil life prescribed in Schedule It to the Act. The management believes that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The Group has
estimated the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment:

Asset category Useful life Useful life as per
estimated by the Schedule 11

Management

Leasehold linprovetnents 10 years 10 years
Plant and machinery 510 10 years 13 to 15 years
Furnitute and fixtures 5 to 10 years 5 to 10 years
Computers and netsvorks 3 to 6 years 3 to 6 years

Residual value is considered to be 5% on all the assets, as tecisnicahly estimated by the management.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if tise asset’s carrying amount is greater titan its estitisated
recoverable amount. Gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets whiels are carried at cost are recognised to the statement of profit amtd
loss.

F. Intangible assets

(I Recog,titiott amid ,tteasttre,ttetmt
histangible assets that are acquired, are recognized at cost initially aitd carried at cost less aceutustlated atnortization and accumulated
impairment loss, if any. Subsequent expemsditttrc is capitahised only svhieis it increases misc future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates.

ii.t A,tmortitumtiotm
Upto 31st December 2022, amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less ttseir estimated residual values over their
estimated useful lives smuing the “writets down value” (WDV) method, and is imiehaded iii depreciation and ansortizutioms its stateisseist of profit
attd loss.

With effect from 1st January 2023, use Group huts ctsanged its method of amortization from Written Down Value (“WDV”) tsmethod to Straight
Line Mctlsod (“SLM”), based mtpon the teelsisical assessment of expected pattern of comssutssption of the future economic benefits embodied its
tite iistamsgible assets.
The estimated useful life is as follows:
- Software- 3 years
Amortization mettsod, useful lives atsd residual values ace reviewed at the cud of cads fitsancial year and adjusted if appropriate.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

G. Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is recognized at cost. It comprises of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use at the
reporting date.

H. Inventories

Inventories comprise of diagnostic kits, reagents, laboratory chemicals and consumables, these are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost of inventories comprises of alt coats of purchase and other costs incuired in bringing the inventories to their present location after
adjusting for recoverable taxes, if any. Coat is determined on First-in-First-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated coats of consptetiou and selling expenses. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is
made on an itein-by-itens basis.

Impairment of assets

(I Impabsnenl offinancial inatrs,,nents
The Group recognisea loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amorlised cost. Al each reporting dale, the
Group assesses whether financial assets carried at ainorlised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more
events that have a detrimental inspact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the follosving observable data~
- significant financial difficnlty of the boirower or issuer;
- a breach of contract;
- it is probable that the borrower wilt enter bankruptcy or oIlier financial reorganization; or
- thic disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
itmutrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portiois of expected credit losses that result from defaslt events that are possible svilhin 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if time expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In alt cuses, the moxinsum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum conmractsat period over which tIme Group
is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has iiscreased uigaificantly since initial recognition aisd s’.’tmen estimating expected
credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. TIes
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and iticluding forward-looking information.

Measurement ofexpected credit losses
Expected credit louses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are nteasured as the present vnlnc of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between tIme cash flows due to the Group in accordance with time contract and tIme cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

Presentation ofallomvasce for e.cpected credit losses jim the hala,ice sheet
Loss allosvances for financial assets measured at amortiscd coat are deducted from the gross carrying amount of mIme assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amoutst of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to time extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income Ihiat could generate
sufficient cuslt flows ho repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial ausetu that are written off could still be subject ho
enforcement activitieu in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovety of amosnts due.
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3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

ii,) Impairment of non-financial assets
The Groups non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each
CGU represents the snsallesl group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable ansount of a CGU (or att ittdividual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
based ott Ilse estimated future cash flows, discounted to their presetst value using a pre-tax discoatat rate that reflects current market assessments
of the lime value of nsoney and the risks specific to tise CGU (or the asset).

The Group’s corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not generate independent cash inflows.
To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determitsed for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

Ats inspairment loss is recogtsised if the carryitsg ansount of ats asset or CGU exceeds its estituated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit tsnd loss.

In respect of assets for wlsich impairmetst loss has been recognised in prior periods, tise Grostp reviews at each reporting date whetlser there is
any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An inspairmetst loss is reversed if there Isas been a clsange in the estimates used to
determine tlse recoverable amostnt. Sstcls a reversal is made only to tlse extent that Site asset’u currying amottnt does not exceed the carl’ying
anaottnt that would have beets detertuined, net of depreciation or ansortization, if no inspainnent loss has been recognised.

J. Employee benefits

(0 Short-term employee benefits
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including nots-Inonetasy benefits tlsat are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after tlse end of tlse
period its which Ilse etnployees render tlse related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to Site end of the reporting pertod
attd are measured on an uisdiscoutsted basis at the atnounts expected to be paid when site liabilities are settled. Tise liabilities are presented as
cstrreat employee benefit obligations in tlse balance ulseet.

(ii) Defined contribution plans:
A defined cotstribution platt is a pout-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity attd will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Grosip makes specified monthly contributions towards Govemment
administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contribsitions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an etnployee benefit
expettse in profit or loss in tlse periods during whicts the related services are rendered by employees.

(iit’,t Defined benefit plans:
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit pian other thats a defined conttibution plan. Tlse liability or asset recognised in tlse balance
sheet in respect of defined betsefit plans is she presetss value of the defined benefit obligation at tise end of the reporting period less site fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligatiots is calculated atstsually by a qualified aetttat’y suing tlse projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is detennined by discounting the estinsated futsire casls outflows by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on govemment bonds sisal lsave tertns approximating to the tetms of the related obligation.

The net intereut cost in calculated by applying tise discount rate to tlse net balance of site defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets. Tlsis cost is included in etssployee benefit expense its the statement of profit atsd loss,

Remeasuretssent gains and losses arising fi’otss experience adjusttnents and clsanges in aettiariul assumptions are recognised in the pertod to

svhicls they occur, directly in other consprelsenoive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of citanges in eqttity and its
the balance sheet.

Cisanges in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting frotn plan atnendments or curtailments are recognised imnsediately tn
profit or loss as past service cost.

(is9 OIlier long-term eniployee benefits
Tlse liabilities for eartsed leave and sick leave are sot expected so be settled svlsolly within 12 tsionths after ttsc end of the period in which the
employees render tlse related service. They arc therefore isscasstrcd as Ilse preseist value of expected future payntetsts to be made its respect of
services provided by eissployecs up to the end of tlse reportissg period by a qualified actuaty usitsg the projected unit credit metlsod. TIse
beisefits are discounted using the tssarket yields at tlse end of the reporting period ttsat have tertsss approximating to the terists of ttte related
obligtttiots. Retsseassa’etssetsts as a result of experience adjststissents aisd clssnges its actuarial assunsptions are recognised in prot’it or loss.
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Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

K. Leases

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course.

Company as a Lessor:
Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified ass finance or operating tease. When ever the terms of a tease transfer substantiatty alt
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. Alt other leases are classified as operating teases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on straight line basis over the term of retevant lease.

Company as a Lessee:
The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease reqaires
significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company
is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a
lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a tease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Conspany to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to temsinate the lease. Ttte Company revises the lease
term if there is a cttange in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rats specific to die tease being evaluated or for a portfolio of teases with
similar characteristics.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of tnd AS 116 Leases to shotS-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease tents.

L. Income-tax

Income-tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income.

((I Current tax
Current tax comprises Ilse expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous yearn. The amount of current tax teflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively
etsacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(‘1(1 Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between ttte cartying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
- temporaty differences arising ott the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combtnatmon and that
affects neither accounting our taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction; and

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of tIm reversal of tim
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future;

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
The existence of unitned tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a Itistory of recent
losses, the Group rccognises a deferred tax asset otily to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or tltere is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets —

Unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised! reduced to the extent that it is probable! no lunger
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at time tax rates that arc expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on
the laws that Itave been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in whirls the Group expects, at tite
reporting date, to recover or senle the carrying amottnt of its assets and liabilities.
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Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

M. Provision, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group Isas a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an outtlow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date)
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessnsents of the time vatse of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised under finance costs. Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Contingencies:
Provision in respect of loss contitsgencieu relating to claims, litigations, assessments, fines and penalties are recognised when it is probable that
a liability has been incurred and the amount can be estimated reliably.

Contingent liabilities and continent assets:
A coistingeist liability exists whets there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant
provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Coistingent assets has ho be recognised in the finaiscial statements in the period is which if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise. Contingent assets are assessed coistinsally and no such benefits uvere found for the current financial year.

N. Earnings per share

Basic Earnings Per Share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is coissptitcd by dividing the net profit by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and alss the weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upots conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of tlse
beginning of the year, sinless issued at a later datn. In computing diluted earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and
that either reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included, The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted retrospectively for all periods preoentcd for tlse share splits.

0. Cash flow statement

Casis flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit! (loss) before tax in adjusted for site effects of transactions of a non-casts
nntsre and atiy defei’ralt or accruals of past or future cash receipts or psymettts and item of income or expenses associated with itsvestiitg or
financitug casts flosvs. The casts flows from regular revenue generstitsg (operatitsg activities), investing and financing activities of thin Group are
segregated.

P. Cash and cash equivalents

For the puipose of presentation in the nhahement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on Itand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other uhort-tei’m, highly liquid investtnents with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
knosvn amounts of cash and whirls are subject to an insignificant rink of changes in value.

Q. Events after reporting date

Whsere events occutring after tIm balance slices date provide evidence of cosditiotss ttsat existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of
such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only
disclosed.

R. Recent accounting pronouncements

Miniotiy of Corporate Affaim (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA tao not notified any new standards or ansendnsents to
thin existing standards apphiable to the Company
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Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

4 (a) Pro~ertv. ulant and eauinment

• Leasehold . Furniture and . ElectricalParticulars . Plant and equipment Computers Office equipment . Total
improvements * fixtures equipment

A. Gross carrying amount (at cost)
As at April 01, 2023 44.89 815.92 38.13 27.83 1.22 7.87 935.84
Additions 1.61 3.25 2.24 0.42 0.27 8.56 16.34
Deletions - (0.35) - - - (0.35)
As at March 31, 2024 46.50 818.82 40.37 28.25 1.49 16.42 951.82
Additions - 42.69 6.72 0.42 - - 49.84
Deletions - (16.13) - - - - (16.13)
As at March 31, 2025 46.50 845.39 47.09 28.67 1.49 16.42 985.53

B. Accumulated depreciation
As atApril 01, 2023 28.80 691.56 35.26 24.26 0.18 1.32 781.38
Fortheyearended 2.29 5.98 0.24 0.79 0.26 1.28 10.84

Deletions - (0.33) - - .. (0.33)

As at March 31, 2024 31.09 697.21 35.50 25.05 0.44 2.59 791.90
Fortheyearended 2.30 7.45 0.58 0.66 0.26 1.50 12.75
Deletions - (10.20) - - - - (10.20)

As at March 31, 2025 33.39 694.46 36.08 25.70 0.70 4.09 794.46

C. Net carrying amount (A-B)
As at March 31, 2025 13.10 150.93 11.01 2.97 0.79 12.33 191.06

As at March 31, 2024 15.39 121.62 4.87 3.19 1.05 13.83 159.92

* Leasehold improvements are the interiors/civil works canied out by the group at the diagnostic Centre taken on lease.
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Meclinova Diagnostic Services Limited
N~es to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

4(l~) Intangible assets
Particulars Amount
Software
A. Gross carrying amount (at cost)
As at April 01, 2023 0.88
Additions 5.13
Deletions -

As at March 31, 2024 6.01
Additions 0.75
Deletions
As at March 31, 2025 6.76
B, Accumulated amortization
As at April 01, 2023 0.48
For the year ended 1.89
Deletions -

As at March 31, 2024 2.37
For the year ended 1.72
Deletions -

As at March 31, 2025 4.09

C. Net carrying amount —

As at March 31, 2025 2,68
As at March 31, 2024 3.64
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Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise staled)

5 Financial assets

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

(a) Investments - Quoted
Uti Money Market Fund - Direct Plan Growth 4,941 (March31 2024- Nil) units

Aggregate book value of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments

(b) Trade receivables
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Credit impaired
Less: Allosvance for doubtful receivables (expecled credit loss allowance)

* Includes amount receivable from related parties (refer note 26)

151.25 -

151.25 0.00
151.25 -

151.25 -

54.57 42.58
19.21 19.28

(19.28) (19.28)
54.57 42.58

Outstanding for follosving periods from due date of receipt

Less than 6 6 months - 1
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 Years Total

Particulars months year

(1) Undisputed Trade receivables —

vonsidered good 45.58 9.00 54.57

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables —

which have significant increase in credit
risk - - - - - -

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables —

credit impaired - - - 0.19 19.09 19.28

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—
considered good - - - - - -

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk - - - — — — —

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit
impaired - - - -

Total (A) 45.58 9.00 - 0.19 19.09 73.85

Expected credit loss rate - - 100.00% 100.00%

Loss Allowance - B - - - 0.19 19.09 19.28

Carrying amount of trade receivables
(C~A-B) 45.58 9.00 - - - 54.57

As on March 31, 2024 —

Outstanding for folio eriods front due date of receipt

Less than 6 6 months —
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 Years Total

Particulars months year

(1) Undisputed Trade receivables —

considered good 40.15 1.75 0,68 - - 4258

(ii) Uitdisputed Trade Receivables —

which have significant itterease in credit
risk - - - - - -

(ih) Undisputed Trade Receivables —

credit impaired - - 0.19 1.55 17.54 19.28

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—
coasidered good - - - - - -

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — wtmieh
have significant increase in credit risk — - — — — —

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit
i~j~ired - - - - - —— -

Total (A) 40.15 1.75 0.87 1.55 17.54 61.86
E~p~ted credit loss mate - - 2 1.84% 100.0% 100.0%
Loss Allowance - B - - 0.19 1.55 17.54 19.28

Carrying amount of trade receivables
(C=A-B) 40.15 1.75 0.68 - - 42.58
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(Alt amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Asat Asal
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(c) Other financial assets
Non-current
(Unsecured, csnsides’ed good)
Security deposits
Deposits saving remaining maturity of more than 12 months S

S Includes Fixed deposit of Rs. 11.35 takhs held as Margin Money towards bank guarantee (March 3 t, 2024: Rs.9,35 lakhs)

(d) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- in current accounts
- in deposit accounts saving remaining maturity of less llsan 3 months

(d) Otiter financial assets
(Unsecsred, considered good,l
Current

Interest accrued on bank deposits and others
Security deposits

6 Deferred tax asset/(liabtltties), net

Deferred tax assets
- On account of property, plant and equipnseat
- On account of decommissioning liability
- Ois account of expenses allowable on payment basis

8 Other assets
Current
Prepaid expenses
GST Input Tax Credit

15.92
14,30
5022

15.92
39,35
cc-,,

2.28 2.56

100.68
87.73

190.69

88.93
100.00
191.49

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities), net

4.90 2,98
- 0,27

4.90 3.25

13,14 22,64
10,98 10,98
11.85 13,74

35.97 47.36

Movement in deferred tax assets! (liabilities)
On account of Properly, Expenses Provision for Total

plant and allowable on decommissioning
equipment payment basis liability

As at April 01, 2023 31.07 13,31 10.98 55.37
(Charged)! credited:
- to profit and loss (8.44) 0.84 - (7.60)
-to OCt - (0.41) - (0.41)

As at March 31, 2024 22.64 13.74 10.98 47.36
(Charged)/erediled:
- to profit and loss (9.50) (2.52) - (12.02)
- to Oct - 0.67 - 0,67

As at March 31, 2025 13.14 11.85 10.98 35.97

7 Inventories
(Valued at loss’er ofcost and net realisable value)
Reagents, elsemicals, digital imaging films and consumables 14.98 13.58

14.98 13.58

4.76 (s,25
- 0,11

4.76 6.36
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Asat Asat

________________________________________________________________— March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
9 Equity

Authorised share capital
11,000,000 (March 31, 2024: 11,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,100.00 1,100.00

Equity share capital
(a) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital

9,981,640 (March 31, 2024: 9,981,640) equityshares ofRs. 10 each, fullypaid.up 998.16 998.16
Less : Allotment Monery Arrears 2.48 2.48

995.68 995.68

i) Reconciliation of equity slsares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Number of Amount Number of shares Amount
shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 99,8 1,640 995.68 99,8 1,640 995.68
Shares issued during the year .. - -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 99,81,640 995.68 99,81,640 995.68

ii) Terms and rights attaclsed to equity shares
Equity shares issued by the Company have par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the
event of liquidation of the Company, the holdera of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Compaisy. after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of % of total shares Number of shares % of total shares

Vijsya Diagnostic Centre Limited (Holding Company) 62,02,220 62. 14% 62,02,220 62.14%

As per records the Company including registration of shareholders! members, the above share holding represents boths legal and beneficial
ownership of shares. Name of the Holding Company changed to Vi jays Diagnostic Centre Limited with effect from March 26, 2021 (formerly
known as Vijays Diagnostic Centre Private Limited).

iv) Shares held by Holding Company
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equity Shares:
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited 62,02,220 62,02,220

v) Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year
Marcls 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

% Change
. . . Number of . /o Change

Nuissber 01 shares % lsold:ng During the /o holding
shares During the Year

Year
Equity Shares:
Vijaya Diagnostic
CentreLimited 62,02,220 62.14% - 62,02,220 62.14%
(Holding Companyl

Vi) Details of shares issued for consideration other than cash and bonus shares during last five years:
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 Marcls 2023 31 March 2022 31 Harch 2021

Shares issued for consideration other than cash . .

Bonus shares . — - —

(b) Othser equity
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Genetal reserve 62.46 62.46
Securities premium 51.55 51.55
Retained earnings (1,234.45) (1,422.16)

(1,120.47) (1,308.14)
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i) General reserve

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the commencement of the year 62.46
Add: Movement during the year -

Balance as at the end of the year 62.46 62.46

The general reserve is used fi-om time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is
created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general
reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss,

ii) Securities nremium

, March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the commencement of the year 51.55 51.55
Add: Movement during the year -

Balance as at the end of the year 51.55 51.55
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. it will be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the “Act.

iii) Retained earnings

As at
March 31, 2025

Balance at the commencement of the year
Add: Profit for the year
I.ess: Adjustment on consolidation (towards acquisition of Non Controlling Interest in Subsidiary)
Itenis of othe,’ comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings

- Rerneasurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax
Balance as at the end of the year

(1.9,8) l.22
(1,234.45) (1,422.16)

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distribution to
shareholders.OCI represents Re-measurement on defined benefit plans: Difference between the interest income on plan assets and the return
actually achieved, any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assuniptions or experience adjustments within the plans,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and subsequently not reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Total Other equity (i+ii+iii) (1,120.47) (1,308.14)

62.46

As at
March 31, 2024

(1,422.16) (1,623.27)
189.67 199.89
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As at
March 31. 2025

As at
March 31. 2024

10 Financial liabilities

(a) Borrowings
Non-Current

Unsecured loans
From related parties

-from Holding Company

Note:

500.00 500.00
500.00 500.00

i. Terms of Unsecured loans from related parties:
(a) Loan from Holding Company is repayable in 3 years from the date of sanction, and the loan carries an interest rate of 10% per
annum.

(b) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enteprises and small enterprises (refer note 23)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small

* Includes amount payable to related parties (refer note 26)
228.47 237.15

As on March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Than 3 Total
Unbilled Year Years

i)MSME 2.89 0.42 - - - 3.31
ii)Others 8.31 27.24 - 0.44 189.17 225.16
iii)Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - - -

IV)Disputed Dues-Others - - - - - -

Total 11.21 — 27,66 - 0.44 189.17 228.47

As oms March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More Tlsan 3 Total
Unbilled Year — Years

m)MSME 3.52 0.18 - - - 3.70
ii)Others 7.67 33.35 0.00 0.81 191.62 233.45
iii)Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - - -

IV)Disputed Dues-Others - - - - -

Total 11.19 33.53 0.00 0.81 — 191.62 237.15

3.31
225.16

3.70
233.45
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March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(c) Other financial liabilities

Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 12.67
Payable to employees 19.02 21.59~19.02 34.26

11 Other liabilities
Current

Statutory liabilities 5.42 ~L.5.42 6.67

12 Provisions
Non-current

Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratui~ (refer note 25) 17.05 18.68
- Compensated absences 3.00 3.5120.05 22.19

Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratui~ (refer note 25) 5.65 9.21
- Compensated absences 2.24 3.95

Others:
- Decommissioning liability 35.18 35.18

43.07 48.34

Note:
1. Movement in provision for others: Decommissioning liability

Carrying amount as at April 01, 2023 35.18
Add: Provision created during the year -

Less: Provision reversed during the year -

Balance as at Marcis 31, 2024 35.18

Carrying amount as at April 01, 2024 35.18
Add: Provision created during the year -

Less: Provision reversed during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2025 35.18
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13 Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Other operating revenue

Franchise Management Fee

14 Other income

Interest income on bank deposits and others
Fair value gain on investments measured at FVTPL
Other non operating income

15 Cost of materials consumed

Inventory of materials as at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year
Less: Inventories of materials as at the end of the year

16 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note 25]
Gratuity [refer note 25]
Compensated absences
Staff welfare expenses

17 Finance costs

Interest on bank over draft measured at arnortised cost
Interest on borrowings from Holding Company measured at amortised cost
Interest expense on decommissioning liabi hty

18 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

19 Other expenses

Power and fuel
Rent (refer note (ii) below)
Repairs and maintenance

- Plant and equipment
- Others

House keeping expenses
Security charges
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Advertisement, publicity and marketing
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional fees
Payment to auditors [refer note (i) below]
Postage and communication
Provision for doubtful receivables
Net loss on sale/retirement of property, plant and equipment
Bank charges
Directors sitting fees
Miscellaneous expenses

7.31
11.91

145.04
4.82

10.98
18.00

Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited
?~otes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

974.28 1,012.80

7.01 3.72
981.29 1,016.52

9.44 3.49
1.25 -

3.87 16.33
14.56 19.82

13.58 12.22
65.72 101.65

(14.98) (13.58)
—~- 64.32 100.29

158.74 169.24
12.87 13.16
4.42 5.48
3.63 (0.43)
2.94 2.75

182.60 190.19

50.00 57.40

50.00 57.40

12.75 10.84
1.72 1.89

14.47 12.73

37.19
49.97

72,93
5.44

10.31

1.35
8.76

38.02
55,19

71.76
1.78

11.24
0.66
1.82

12.83
2.94

10.58
120.26

4.88
11.26

3.20
4.24 4.78
0.32 0.21
938 8.95

360 36 397.98
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Notes:

I. Payment to auditors (inclusive of taxes)
As auditors

- Statutory Audit Fee (including limited reviews)
- Tax Audit Fee

3.93 3.87
0.95 0.95
4.88 4.82

ii. Rent inicudes expense on low value lease of Rs. 3.66 lakhs (FY 2023-24, Rs. 3.36 lakhs) and on short term lease of Rs. 50.23 lakhs (FY 2023-24
Rs.46.61 lakhs)

20 Income-tax expense

(a) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

Current tax 47.55 20.39
Earlier years tax 0.42 0.01
Deferred tax attributable to temporary differences 12.02 7.60
Tax expense 59.99 28.01~

(b) Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI
Deferred tax expense/(income) on rerneasurements of defined benefit obligations (0.67) 0.41
Income-tax expense/(income) recognised in OCI (0.67) 0.41

(c) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the amounting profit multiplied by tax rate

Profit before tax
Enacted tax rate in India for holding company
Enacted tax rate in India for subsidiary
Tax expense at enacted rates

Tax effect of:
Disallowances for tax purpose
Allowances for tax purpose
Set off against carry forward losses

Tax pertaining to earlier years
Income-tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Income-tax assets, (net)
Current tax assets (liabilities), (net)

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March~

11.89 11.89
(1.73) 0.81
10.16 12.70

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

12.70 10.15
(47.55) (20.39)

(0.42) (0.01)
45.43 22.96
10.16 12.70

249.66
25. 17%
34,94%

75.57

227.89
25.17%
34.94%

64.97

17.84 16.63
(17.48) (15.83)
(16.35) (37.77)

0.42 0.01

(d) The following table provides the details of income tax assets and income tax liabilities:

59.99 28.01_

Net income-tax assets at the beginning of the year
Less: Current income tax expense
Less: Tax pertaining to earlier years
Add: Tax paid / (refund received) during the year
Net income tax assets as at the end of the year
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21 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Contingent liabilities
Asat Asat

March 31 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Sernce Tax* 1.68
(ii) Goods and Service Tax* 13.17 -

* Includes Rs, 1.96 lakhs (March 31, 2024- Nil) paid under protest 14.85 -

The Company has established a liability with respect to contingencies for which loss is probable of estimatablc. While the ultimate
resolution of and liability and cost relatable to these matters cannot be determined with certainty, the management does not believe any
of these pending actions, individually or in the aggregate, will materially impact operations or materially affect financial condition or
liquidity.

Capital and other commitments
Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Nil Nil
capital account not provided for (net of advances)
Other commitments Nil Nil

22 Earnings per share ___________________________________________For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Earnings for the year
Net profit for the year (A) 189.67 199.89

Shares
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (B) 99,8 1,640 99,8 1,640

Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS (C) 99,8 1,640 99,81,640

(a) Basic earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each (A/B) 1.89 2.00
(b) Diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each (A/C) 1.89 2.00

23 Dues to micro and small enterprises
Details of dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
~culars Mar 31, 2025 Mar~3 1, 2024

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any
supplier at the end of each accounting year;
- Principal 3.31 3,70
- Interest - -

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED -

Act, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year;

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment - -

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under this MSMED Act;

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the each - -

accounting year; and

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - -

years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section
23 of the MSMED Act.

Note: The list of undertakings covered under MSMED Act was determined by the Group on the basis of information available with the
Group and has been relied upon by the auditors.

24 Segment reporting

A. Basis for segmentation
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components, and for which discrete
financial information is available. All operating segments results are reviewed regularly by the Group’s Chairman and MD to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segmenls and assess their perfonriance.
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Tlse Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM’) evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of
various performance indicators at operational unit level and since there is single operating segment, no segment disclosures of the
Group is presented. The Group’s operations fall within a single business segment “Diagnostic services”.

B. Geographical information
The Group operates within India and therefore there is no assets or liabilities outside India.

C. Major customers
Revenue from any single customer of the Group’s operating segment does not exceed 10% of the total revenue reported and hence the
Management believes that there are no major customers to be disclosed.
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25 Employee benefit plans

The Company has following post employment benefit plans:

(a) Defined contribution plans
Contributions were made to provident fund (at the rate of 12% of basic salary) and Employee State Insurance in India for the employees
of the Company as per the regulations. These contributions are made to registered funds administered by the Government of India. The
obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any other constructive obligation.
The expense recognised during the year in the consolidated statement of profit and loss towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 12.87
lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 13.16 lakhs).

(b) Defined benefit plan
The Company provides for Gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of 5 years are eligible for Gratuity. The amount of Gratuity payable on retirement! termination is the employee’s last
drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service or part thereof in
excess of six months, restricted to a sum of Rs. 20.00 lakhs. The gratuity plan is a unfunded plan.

i. Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)! liability
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets over the
year are as follows:

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the defined benefit obligation as per the valuation report as
at March 31, 2025 are produced in the tables below

value of O[

value of obligation as at the beginning
service cost
expense or cost
ial (gains) ! losses

- change in demographic assumptions
- change in financial assumptions
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)
Benefits paid
~resent value of obligation as at end

2.43
1.99

2.36
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25 Employee benefit plans (continued)

(b) Defined benefit plan (continued)

ii. Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for
the estimated term of the obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors.

Attrition rate: Represents the Company’s best estimate of employee turnover in future (other than on account of retirement, death or
disablement) determined considering various factors such as nature of business, retention policy, industry factors, past experience, etc.

iii. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant,
would have affected the defined benefit obligation and current service cost b the amounts shown below:

Increase in assum tion b 1% Decrease in assum tion b l%
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Discount rate -3,6% -3.2% 3.9% 3.4%
Salary escalation rate 3.9% 3.4% -3.7% -3.3%
Attrition rate -0.4% -0.6% 0.9% O.l%

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected
benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

iv. Maturity profile of the defined benefit liability
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 4 years (March 31, 2024 - 3 years). The expected maturity analysis of
defined benefit obligation on an undiscounted basis is as follows:

Less than a year Between 2-5 Between 6-10 years More than 10
years years

March3l,2025 5.65 15.08 5.20 4.13
March3l,2024 9.21 19.16 4.38 3.68
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26 Related party disclosures

(a) Details of related parties

Description of relationship Name of the related parties
Holding Company Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited

(formerly known as Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Private Limited)

Fellow Subsidiaries P H Diagnostic Centre Private Limited
VDC Diagnostics (Karnataka) LLP

Doctors Lab Medical Services Private Limited (Striked off by ROC w.e.f. 06
April 24)

Namrata Diagnostic Centre Private Limited (struck off w.e.f. 06 April 2024)

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Dr. Sura Surendranath Reddy, Chairman
Sunil Chandra Kondapally, Managing Director
Nikhil Rajmal Jam, Chief Financial Officer ( w.e.f. Januray 31, 2024 upto
November 30, 2024)

Satish Bollineni, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. January 30, 2025)
Hansraj Singh Rajput, Company Secretary

Close member of KMP S.Geetha Reddy (Wife of Dr. Sum Surendranath Reddy, Chairman)

Enterprise where KMP has significance influence Kshetra Agritech Private Limited
Summit Nutracueticals Private Limited
Trikona Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
Vijaya Hospitals Pvt. Ltd.
S Square Properties LLP
Trikona Holdings LLP
Vijaya Holdings India LLP
Anua Living LLP
Barina Resorts Private Limited

Independent Directors Kamalaka Rao Ponnapalli (w.e.f November 10th 2014)
Ravindra Reddy Venga Reddy Kutagulla (Up to March 31st 2024)
Ravi Kumar Reddy Kanamatareddy (w.e.f. June 21, 2024)

(b) Details of transactions during the year
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited
Diagnostic Services-Expense 64.01 44.16
Branding Income 4.25

Interest on Loan 50.00 57.40
Loan Repaid 75.00
Sale of Fixed assets 3.39
Rent Paid 46.73 43.54
Reimbursment of expenses 8.03

S.Geetha Reddy
Rent Paid 4.69 4.36

Kamalaka Rao Ponnapalli
independent directors sitting fee/commision 0.15 0. 11

Ravindra Reddy Venga Reddy Kutagulla
Independent directors sitting fee/commision 0.12 0.11
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(c) Amounts due (to)! from related parties Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured Loan
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited 500.00 500.00

Interest payable
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited - 12.67

Trade payable
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited 10.11

Rent Payable
S.GeethaReddy 0.37 0.33

Rental deposits
S.GeethaReddy 1.85 1.85

Creditors for services
Vijaya Diagnostic Centre Limited 188.90 195.97

Note:
All transactions with these related parties are at aims length basis and resulting outstanding receivables and payables including financial
assets and financial liabilities balances are settled in cash. None of the balances are secured. (All the amounts of transactions and balances
disclosed in this note are gross and undiscounted.)
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27 Capital management
The Group’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on equity so as to provide returns to
shareholders, benefits to other stakeholders, creditors and to sustain future development and growth of the business. In order to
maintain the capital structure, the Group monitors the return on capital as well as debt to total equity ratio. The Group aims to
manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concem and to optirnise returns to all its
shareholders. For the purpose of debt to total equity, debt includes its long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprises
of issued share capital and all other equity reserves. Since the total equity is negative, Gearing ratio is not given.

28 Financial instruments

A. Accounting classifications and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in
the fair value hierarchy.

Particulars Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Fair value
Amortised Cost Fair value Amortised Cost Fair level

value

Financial assets
Trade receivables 5 (b) 54.57 - 42.58 - Level 3
Security deposits 5 (c) 15.92 - 15.92 - Level 3
Bank deposits 5 (c) 14.30 - 39.35 - Level 3
Cash and cash equivalents 5 (d) 190.69 .. 191.49 - Level 3
Other financial assets 5 (c) 4.90 - 3.25 - Level 3
Total financial assets 280.38 - 292.59 -

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10 (a) 500.00 - 500.00 - Level 3
Trade payables 10(b) 228.47 - 237.15 - Level3
Other financial liabilities 10(c) 19.02 - 34.26 - Level 3
Total financial liabilities 747.49 - 771.41 -

Note: The Group has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as short-term trade receivables or short-term trade
payables because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair values.

Note 1 For the purpose of above abbreviations, FVTOCI - Fair value through other comprehensive income; amortised cost - fair
value through amortized cost

Note 2: Other financial assets and liabilities relate to level 3 financial instruments where the carrying value reasonably
approximates to their fair value.
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28 Financial instruments - fair valuation and risk management (continued)

13. Financial Risk Management

The Group activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Credit Risk
bank deposits and loans. Credit score of customers/ entities.

Liquidity Risk Borvowings Cash flow forecasts managed by finance team under Working capital management by Senior Management.
the overview of Senior Management. The excess liquidity is channelised through bank deposits and investment in

mutual funds.

The Group’s risk management is carried Out by the Senior Management under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors provides guiding principles for overall risk management, as well
as policies covering specific areas suds as credit risk and liquidity risk.

i. Credit risk

Ctedit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group ifs customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers
and loans.

Tlse Group has no significant concentration of credit risk witls any counterparty.

Trade receivables and loans
Customer credit risk is managed by the respective department subject to Group’s establislsed policy, procedures and control relatssg to customer credit risk maisagement. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
based on individual credit limits as defined by the Group. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

Expected credit loss (ECL) assessment for individual customers:

As per simplified approach, the Group makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivable using a provision matrix to mitigate the risk of default payment and make appropriate provision at each
reporting date.
TIse ageing analysis of the receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls due.

<365 days > 365 days Provision Total

March 31, 2025 54.57 19.28 (19.28) 54.57
March 31, 2024 41.90 19.96 (19.28) 42.58

Management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 180 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables is as follows: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the begiuning of the year 19.28 1.28
Add: Allowance measured at lifetime expected credit loss - 18.00
Balance at the end of the year 19.28 19.28

Credit risk on cash and cssls equivalents, deposits with banks is generally low an the said deposits have been made with the banks who have been assigned high credit rating by credit rating agencies.
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28 Financial instruments - fair valuation and risk management (continued)

B. Financial risk management (continued)

ii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its fmancisl liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s approach
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both nomsal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The fmance team monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity poaition and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash outflows on trade payables and other financial liabilities and any excess!
short liquidity is managed in the form of current borrowings and bank deposits an per the approved frame work.

March 31, 2024

Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term borrowings)
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

Except for thcae fmancial liabilities, it is not expected that cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts.

Market risk is the risk that results from changes in market prices - such an foreign exchange rates, intcrcat rates and others which will affect the Group’s income. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market rink exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the rctum.

March 31, 2025

Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term borrowings)
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

Exposure to liability risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of
netting agreements.

iii. Market risk

Carrying Total Contractual cash flows
amount Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5

years

500.00 500.00 500.00 - -

228.47 228.47 228.47 - - -

19.02 19.02 19.02 - - -

747.49 747.49 747.49 - - -

Carrying Total Contractual cash flows
amount Less than 1 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5

year years
500.00 500.00 500.00 - - -

237.15 237.15 237.15 - - -

34.26 34.26 34.26 - - -

771.41 771.41 771.41 - - -
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29 Disclosure as per hid AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers
Asat Asat

~ March 31, 2025 March31, 2024

Contract assets
- Unbilled revenue - -

- Trade receivables 54.57 42.58
Contract liabilities
- Advances from customers -

- Contract liability- deferred revenue -

Reconciliation of revenue from contract with customers
. Asat Asat

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue front contract with customer as per the contract 965.83 981.50
Adjustments made to contract price on account of:
Discount / Rebates 8.45 31.30
Revenue from contract with customer 974.28 1,012.80
Other operating revenue 70 1 3.72
Revenue from operations 981.29 1,016.52

30 Code on Social Security, 2020:
The Indian Parliament has approvcd the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has
released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakcholderu which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the
impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the pcnod in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the
financial impact arc published.
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31 Ratios as per the Schedule HI requirements

a) Current Ratio Current Assets divided
Particulars
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Ratio
% Change from

This ratio has increased from 0.79 in March 2024 to 1.41 in March 2024 mainly clue to increase in Current investments

b) Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity
Since the total equity is negative, ratio is not given

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt services divided by Total interest and principal repayments
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Profit after tax 189.67 199.89
Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost 70.13
-Depreciation and amortizations
-Finance cost
Earnings available for debt services
Interest cost on borrowings
Installments
Total Intrest and installments
Ratio
% Change from previous year

Reasons for change more than 25%:
This ratio has increased from 2.04 in March 2024 to 5.08 in March 2025 mainly due to decrease in profit after tax and there is no
repayment of loan during the year.

d) Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Equity

Since the total equity is negative, this ratio is not given

This ratio has diereased from 7.39 in March 2024 to 4.29 in March 2025 mainly due to decrease in Cost of goods sold and
increase in closing inventory

64.47
14.47
50.00

254.14
50.00

50.00
5.08

149%

12.73
57.40

270.01
57.40
75.00

132.40
2.04

Ratio = Cost of eoods sold divided

Reason for change more than 25%:
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I’) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by Closing trade receivables
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Credit Sales 173.27 173.27
Closing Trade Recievables 54.57 42.58
Ratio 3.18 4.07
% Change from previous year -22%

g) Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by closing trade payables
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Credit Purchases 426.08 499,63
Closing Trade Paysbles 228.47 237.15
Ratio 1.86 2.11
% Change from previous year -11%

h) Net capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Working capital whereas working capital= current assets - current
liabilities
As the working capital is negative, this ratio is not given

i) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Netprofitaftertax 189.67 199.89
Sales 981.29 1,016.52
Ratio 19.33% 19.66%
% Change from previous year -2%

j) Return on Capital employed

Since the capital employed is negative, this ratio is not given

Note: Return on investment ratio is not applicable for the group.
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32 AdditIonal information as required under pan 2 of General Instruction for the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of Schedule Ill to the Act.
Name afCampaay March 31, 2025

Net assets, i.e., total assets miaas Share In pront) (loss)
tatal liabilities

Amount As % of Amoant As % of
consolidated net caasolidatcd

assets profit? (lass)
Parent
Medinova Diagnostic Services Limited (119.65) 95.88% 86.96 46.33%
Subsidiaries (including step down subsidiaries)
Mcdinova Millennium MRI Services LLP 291.69 -233.76% 100.76 53.68%
Non-controlling interest in all subsidiaries - - -

Total 172.04 -137.87% 187.72 100.01%
Consolidation odjustrscnts (296.83) 237.87% (0.03) (0.00)
Net amount (124.79) 100.00% 187.69 100.00%

Amoant As % of consolidated Amoost As % of
act assets coosalidnied

profit? (lass)

(206.59) 66.12% 76.49 38.03%

190.94 -61.11% 124.62 61.97%

(15.66) 5.01% 201.11 100.00%
(296.80) 94.99% (0.00) 0.00%
(312.46) 100.00% 201.11 100.00%

Note:
Tho disclosure as shove represents separate information for each of the consolidated entities before elimination of inter-company transactions. The net impacts on elimination of inter company trastactisn.s/
profits! Consolidatisn adjsstments have been disclosed sepsmtely. Based on the gtoup siructure, the Msnagement is of the view that the above disclosure is appmpriate under rcqsiremcnt.s of the Act

33 Other statutory information
I. The Groap does not have any Bcnami pmperty, where any prsceeding has bees initiated or pending against the Gmup for holding any Benami propetty.

ii. The Gmup does not have anytransactions with companies struck off under seclion 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
iii. The Gmup has not traded or invested in Ceypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
iv. The Grasp does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet lobe registered with Regiatrtr of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period.
v. The Gmup has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to sny other pemon(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the

(a) directly or indirectly lead or invent in other persons or entities identified in nay manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of Ihe Ultimate Beneficiaries

vi. The Gmup has no: received any fund from any pemon(s) or estity(ieu), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the undemtsnding (whether recorded in

(a) directly or isdirecily lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
(b) provide any guametee, security or Ihe like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

vu. The Group has not entered into any ixansaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that bus been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
viii. The Gmup has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

34 Schense of Amalgamation
The Board of Directom of the Company at their nseeung held on 26 June 2024, have considered and appmved the pmpoaed Scheme of Amalgamation (‘Scheme”) of the company (“Transferor Company”) with
and into the Holding Conspany, “Vijaya Diagnottic Centre Limited” (Transferee Company) with effect from 01 April 2024 (‘the Appointed Date”) under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable pmvisiom of
the Companies Act, 2013, and other rules and regulations framed thereunder (“Scheme”). The Conspaay has received letter with “no adveme observations” from the BSE Limited and SEBI on December 05,
2024, and farther vide National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Hylembad, order dated March 5, 2025 (“Drder”), the uompanny has obtained apptoval of shareholders vide resolution passed at their meeting
held on April 25,2025, and pursuant to the said order the NCLT has also dispensed the meeting of Unsecured Creditors and Unsecured Loan Creditor as they hove conveyed their consent in writing for the
Scheme of Amalgamation. The Scheme is subject to the appmval of the NCLT, and such other appmvals, permissions, and sanctions of regulatory and other aalhorities as may be necessary.
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For M. Anandam & Co. _~

Chartered Accountants .5d~ri7~%.
~~isiraiionfl

V Abhirsm ~ set~4e~tb03ô ~
Partner
Membership Numbe%6~k )
Place: Hydembad
Dale 03-05-2025

Sura Surendranath Reddy
Chairman
DIN: 00108599

Chic inancial Officer

Mcdiaova Diagnostic Services Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, except for share data or as otherwise slated)

March 31,2024
Net assets, I.e., total assets minas Share lii profit? (loss)

total liaboities

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

DIN: 014093

—a

Han a Singh sip
Company relary

Place: Hydembad
Dale: 03-05-2025
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